THE FACTORS AFFECTING REPURCHASE INTENTION FROM UTILIZING PET INFLUENCER MARKETING ON HOME ELECTRONIC APPLIANCE PRODUCTS

ONPARPA RENGPHUTTHIPHONG

A THEMATIC PAPER SUBMITTED IN PARTIAL FULFILLMENT OF THE REQUIREMENTS FOR THE DEGREE OF MASTER OF MANAGEMENT COLLEGE OF MANAGEMENT MAHIDOL UNIVERSITY 2023

COPYRIGHT OF MAHIDOL UNIVERSITY

Thematic paper entitled

THE FACTORS AFFECTING REPURCHASE INTENTION FROM UTILIZING PET INFLUENCER MARKETING ON HOME ELECTRONIC APPLIANCE PRODUCTS

was submitted to the College of Management, Mahidol University for the degree of Master of Management

> on December 14, 2023

อรปกา 139 mm and M

Miss Onparpa Rengphutthiphong Candidate

Assoc. Prof. Randall Shannon, Ph.D. Chairperson

Sati hawon

Suthawan Sato, Ph.D. Committee member

Assoc. Prof. Chanin Yoopetch, Ph.D. Advisor

Volura . Laomam/

Assoc. Prof. Vichita Ractham, Ph.D. Dean College of Management Mahidol University

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

I would like to express my heartfelt gratitude to each and every person who extended their unwavering support throughout the course of this study. Their encouragement, guidance, and assistance proved to be indispensable in every step of the way. Their input and feedback helped me to shape my research and gain a deeper understanding of the subject matter. This study would not have been possible without their continuous support and unwavering commitment.

I would like to express my sincere gratitude towards my esteemed research advisor, Assoc. Prof. Dr. Chanin Yoopetch, for his unwavering patience, invaluable guidance, and constant support throughout the research project. His extensive knowledge and expertise in the field of research proved to be an asset for the successful completion of the project. Assoc. Prof. Dr. Chanin Yoopetch's meticulous attention to detail, constructive feedback, and suggestions were instrumental in shaping the direction of the research. His guidance and constant support provided me with the necessary motivation to overcome the challenges that arose during the research process. I am grateful for the opportunity to learn from such a knowledgeable and experienced mentor. The value of his counsel to this research project is immeasurable, and I am honored to have worked under his leadership. I express my profound gratitude to the Independent Study Committee, as well as Associate Professor Dr. Randall Shannon and Dr. Suthawan Sato, for their invaluable assistance in ensuring the smooth administrative execution of this study.

I express my sincerest gratitude to my family for their unwavering support, motivation, and countless sacrifices throughout my graduate studies. Their unwavering encouragement and selflessness have been instrumental in my academic accomplishments, and I am deeply appreciative of their contributions.

Onparpa Rengphutthiphong

THE FACTORS AFFECTING REPURCHASE INTENTION FROM UTILIZING PET INFLUENCER MARKETING ON HOME ELECTRONIC APPLIANCE PRODUCTS

ONPARPA RENGPHUTTHIPHONG 6549022

M.M. (MARKETING AND MANAGEMENT)

THEMATIC PAPER ADVISORY COMMITTEE: ASSOC. PROF. CHANIN YOOPETCH, Ph.D., ASSOC. PROF. RANDALL SHANNON, Ph.D., SUTHAWAN SATO, Ph.D.

ABSTRACT

It is essential for brands to attract people's attention and engage them with their content. In this research, we intend to identify the most significant factor that influences the repurchase intention of electronic home appliances through the use of pet influencer marketing. The study examines the impact of various factors such as content quality, attitude towards pet influencers, pet celebrity endorsement, brand image, electronic word-of-mouth (E-WOM), and trust on purchase intention. The findings of this study would assist electronic home appliance brands in developing more effective marketing strategies for electronic home appliance products by utilizing pet influencer marketing. The purpose of this study is to examine individuals residing in Bangkok and the Metropolitan Region (including Nakhon Pathom, Nonthaburi, Pathum Thani, Samut Prakan, and Samut Sakhon) who have watched advertisements featuring pet influencers endorsing electronic home appliances within the last 6 months. A quantitative approach was used, and 213 samples were collected. As per the findings of the study, the most significant factor influencing the likelihood of customers repurchasing a product is pet celebrity endorsement, followed by brand image, content quality, and trust. However, attitude toward pet influencers has a negative impact on repurchase intention, indicating that customers with a more favorable view of pet influencers are less inclined to make a repeat purchase. It is essential to consider these factors while devising strategies to enhance customer retention and brand loyalty.

KEY WORDS: Pet Influencer/ Repurchase Intention/ Electronic Home Appliance

91 pages

CONTENTS

		Page
ACKNOWLE	DGEMENTS	ii
ABSTRACT		iii
LIST OF TAB	BLES	vii
LIST OF FIG	URES	ix
CHAPTER I	INTRODUCTION	1
1.1	Introduction	1
1.2	The scope of this study	6
1.3	Research Questions	7
1.4	Research Objectives	7
CHAPTER II	LITERATURE REVIEW	8
2.1	Content Quality	8
2.2	Attitude toward Pet Influencers	9
2.3	Pet Celebrity Endorsement	10
2.4	Brand image	11
2.5	Electronic word of mouth (E-WOM)	12
2.6	Trust	13
2.7	Repurchase Intention	15
2.8	Conceptual Framework	15
CHAPTER III	I METHODOLOGY	17
3.1	Research Methodology	17
	3.1.1 Sampling	17
	3.1.2 Research Instrument	17
3.2	Data Collection	18
CHAPTER IV	FINDING	20
4.1	Demographic Factors of Respondents	20
	4.1.1 Gender	20
	4.1.2 Age Range	21

CONTENTS (cont.)

			Page
	4.1.3	Occupation	21
	4.1.4	Income	22
	4.1.5	Education	22
4.2	Behavior	on social media platforms on watching pet influencers' clips	23
	4.2.1	Time use on social media	23
	4.2.2	Subjective norm on watching Pet Influencers' content	24
	4.2.3	Active behavior on pet influencers' content.	24
4.3	Content (Quality	25
	4.3.1	Content Quality Reliability Test	25
	4.3.2	Content Quality Descriptive Analysis	26
	4.3.3	Differences between Groups on Content Quality	27
4.4	Attitude 1	toward Pet Influencers	29
	<mark>4</mark> .4.1	Reliability Test	29
	4.4.2	Descriptive Analysis	29
	4.4.3	Differences between Groups on Attitude toward	
		Pet Influencers	30
4.5	Pet Celeb	ority Endorsement	32
	4.5.1	Reliability Test	32
	4.5.2	Descriptive Analysis	32
	4.5.3	Differences between groups on pet celebrity endorsement	33
4.6	Brand Im	nage	34
	4.6.1	Reliability Test	34
	4.6.2	Descriptive Analysis	35
	4.6.3	Differences between Groups on Brand Image	36
4.7	Electroni	c Word of Mouth (E-WOM)	38
	4.7.1	Reliability Test	38
	4.7.2	Descriptive Analysis	38
	4.7.3	Differences between Groups on E-WOM	39

CONTENTS (cont.)

	Page
4.8 Trust	40
4.8.1 Reliability Test	40
4.8.2 Descriptive Analysis	40
4.8.3 Differences between Groups on Trust	41
4.9 Repurchase Intention	43
4.9.1 Reliability Test	43
4.9.2 Descriptive Analysis	43
4.9.3 Differences between Groups on Repurchase Intention	44
4.10 Regression Analysis	47
CHAPTER V DISCUSSION	49
5.1 Relationship	49
5.1.1 Content Quality	49
5.1.2 Attitude toward pet influencers	49
5.1.3 Pet Celebrity Endorsement	50
5.1.4 Brand Image	50
5.1.5 Electronic Word of Mouth (E-WOM)	50
5.1.6 Trust	51
5.1.7 Repurchase Intention	51
5.2 Conclusion	52
5.3 Recommendations	55
5.4 Limitations	59
5.5 Future Research Directions	59
REFERENCES	60
APPENDICES	73
Appendix A: Questionnaire Survey (English Version)	74
Appendix B: Questionnaire Survey (Thai Version)	83
BIOGRAPHY	91

LIST OF TABLES

Table	F	Page
1.1	Top 15 Pet Influencers in Thailand	5
2.1	Hypothesis	16
4.1	Frequency Gender	20
4.2	Frequency Age	21
4.3	Frequency Occupation	21
4.4	Frequency Income	22
4.5	Frequency Education	22
4.6	Frequency of Time use on social media	23
4.7	Frequency of Groups or individual influences to watch content	
	from pet influencers.	24
4.8	Groups or individual influences to do active behavior on pet influencers' content	25
4.9	Reliability Statistic	25
4.10	Content Quality – Descriptive Analysis	26
4.11	Level of Education - ANOVA	27
4.12	Average Monthly Income - ANOVA	28
4.13	Attitude toward Pet Influencers - Reliability Test	29
4.14	Attitude toward Pet Influencers - Descriptive Analysis	29
4.15	Gender - T-Test	30
4.16	Gender - T-Test	30
4.17	Age Range - ANOVA	31
4.18	Average Monthly Income - ANOVA	31
4.19	Pet Celebrity Endorsement - Reliability Test	32
4.20	Pet Celebrity Endorsement - Descriptive Analysis	32
4.21	Age Range - ANOVA	33
4.22	Average Monthly Income - ANOVA	34
4.23	Brand Image - Reliability Statistics	34

LIST OF TABLES (cont.)

Table		Page
4.24	Brand Image - Descriptive Analysis	35
4.25	Age Range - ANOVA	36
4.26	Level of Education - ANOVA	36
4.27	Average Monthly Income - ANOVA	37
4.28	Electronic Word of Mouth - Reliability Statistics	38
4.29	Electronic Word of Mouth - Descriptive Statistic	38
4.30	Average Monthly Income - ANOVA	39
4.31	Trust - Reliability Statistics	40
4.32	Trust - Descriptive Statistics	40
4.33	Age Range - ANOVA	41
4.34	Level of Education - ANOVA	42
4.35	Employment - ANOVA	42
4.36	Average Monthly Income - ANOVA	42
4.37	Repurchase Intention - Reliability Statistics	43
4.38	Repurchase Intention - Descriptive Statistics	43
4.39	Age Range - ANOVA	44
4.40	Level of Education - ANOVA	45
4.41	Average Monthly Income - ANOVA	46
4.42	ANOVA - Regression	47
4.43	Model Summary - Regression	47
4.44	Coefficients - Regression	48

LIST OF FIGURES

Figur	e	Page
1.1	Number of social network users Thailand 2017-2026	1
2.1	Conceptual Framework	15



CHAPTER I INTRODUCTION

1.1 Introduction



Figure 1.1 Number of social network users Thailand 2017-2026 Source: Statista (2022)

The pet industry has experienced significant growth despite the COVID-19 pandemic. Euromonitor predicts that the pet market is predicted to reach a value of 217,615 million US dollars by 2026, growing at an annual rate of 7.2%. The Department of Business Development under the Ministry of Commerce in Thailand also expects the pet market in their country to grow at an average rate of 8.4% annually, reaching a value of 66,748 million baht by 2026 (Today Bizview, 2023). The pet industry in Thailand is experiencing significant growth due to various factors, including the COVID-19 pandemic. The spread of the virus has led to an increase in pet ownership as people seek

companionship and comfort during these challenging times. As the pet market continues to grow exponentially, a new kind of influencer has emerged - the pet influencer. Many pet owners are now managing Instagram accounts for their furry friends, providing an interesting perspective on the relationship between pets and social media platforms such as Instagram (Maddox, 2021). This paper will examine the most significant factor that influences repurchase intention through the use of pet influencer marketing through social media platforms such as Facebook, Instagram, TikTok, and YouTube.

Pet influencers are individuals who specialize in featuring and promoting pets on various social media platforms. The influencer accounts run with human and pet collaboration (Myers et al., 2022). Through their dedicated efforts, these influencers have garnered a considerable following, highlighting the growing popularity of pet-related content on social media. In the digital world, social media profiles of pets managed by their owners can be considered as influencers (Berzleja & Kertész, 2019). According to Shamayleh and Arsel's (2020) research, pet influencer account managers are driven by a desire for social connection and fame to keep their accounts running. They tend to humanize their pets through storytelling and metaphors.

Figure 1 reflects the growing trend of social media usage in the country. This figure was created in 2020. Therefore, the between 2021 and 2026 are the estimated numbers. In the third quarter of 2020, Facebook and YouTube were the most favorite social media platforms in Thailand, with a combined user share of approximately 94%, surpassing other platforms like Line, Instagram, and Twitter. During that same period, Thai internet users spent an average of 8.44 hours per day online, with around 2.5 hours dedicated to social media usage (Statista, 2022). As of January 2023, the total number of social media users in Thailand amounted to 52.25 million. As of the start of 2023, the percentage of individuals using social media in Thailand was recorded at 72.8%. It is important to acknowledge that this number may not accurately reflect the actual number of unique users on social media platforms. According to data from ad planning tools of major social media platforms, 49.40 million people aged 18 and above were using social media in Thailand at the beginning of 2023. This accounted for 84.8 percent of the total population in that age group at that time (Kemp, 2023). Thai people use social media frequently, and many new pet influencers are emerging on these platforms. The growth in the use of social media is an opportunity for pet influencers to grow in the influencer market.

Pet influencers have become a popular trend in influencer marketing, primarily due to the thriving pet industry. The rise of social media has allowed regular people to share their daily lives and gain a large following, earning them the title of social media influencers (Zhang et al., 2019). Pet influencers can provide marketing benefits by promoting products or services and entertaining followers. Additionally, their cuteness can attract a global audience and generate significant income. Famous pets have the potential to earn large sums of money from brand partnerships. For instance, Venus the Cat earns an estimated 6,000 US dollars for each sponsored post, while JiffPom's sponsored posts typically generate 17,000 US dollars. Grumpy Cat utilized his social media fame to create a 100 million US dollars business through advertising and merchandise (Journalistate, 2018). However, it is not just pet-related brands that use pet influencers. Mainstream brands like Budweiser, The Body Shop, and Mercedes Benz are also eager participants (Nguyen, 2022). In Thailand, there are many famous electronic home appliance brands, such as LG, Dyson, and Philips. This paper focuses on electronic home appliance products that utilizes pet influencers' marketing. The first generation of pet influencers in Thailand was the We Are Lovely Pet channel on YouTube from the VRZO channel. Their first clip was posted on 24 Jan 2014 and has 19 million views.

Marketing through pet influencers provides a unique opportunity to obtain a highly engaged audience of pet lovers. By leveraging the power of pet influencers, businesses can effectively tap into a passionate and dedicated community that values all things pet-related. Pet influencer marketing can be particularly beneficial for brands looking to promote products or services, as it offers a direct line to a highly receptive audience (Maddox, 2021). Social media influencers have the power to influence consumers by utilizing their personal brands. (Hartama, 2021). In today's world, influencers are everywhere, present wherever there is a large consumer audience (Campbell & Farrell, 2020), and the concept has been taken a step further with the creation of influencer accounts generated by artificial intelligence or AI (Zhang & Huang, 2022; Zhang & Wei, 2021).

Many products have started to use pet influencers in their marketing strategy. The trend is not limited to pet products alone but also non-pet products as well. The concept at hand is the desire of pet owners to establish dedicated social media profiles for their beloved companions, akin to those of human individuals. The primary objective is to capture and preserve cherished memories of their pets (Hartama, 2021). Thais accept many pets as influencers. For example, Nescafe Gold Creme uses Joommeng as a pet celebrity in a new product launch event. In other words, to the widely recognized figure of Jackson Wang, the esteemed Chinese vocalist in Thailand, Joomeng, a golden retriever, was also in attendance at the aforementioned event (Thairath Online, 2023). Featuring animals can capture the interest of potential customers without coming across as too initiative or sales-oriented (Today Bizview, 2023). In Thailand, there are many pet celebrities that people pay a lot of attention to, such as Joommeng, a golden retriever on a social media account named Japan and Friends, with 3.7 million followers on TikTok. Cielmeowmun, a cat and also a brand ambassador of Kaniva (Cat Food), has 5 million followers on TikTok. Not only are there pet products that use pet influencer marketing, but also products for humans, such as cooking sauces and coffee.

On social media, there are three types of influencers: mega-influencers (celebrities with over 500,000 followers), macro-influencers (with 50,000 to 500,000 followers), and micro-influencers (with 10,000 to 50,000 followers). Micro-influencers are sometimes referred to as everyday influencers, micro-influencers, or brand advocates (Starngage, 2019; Wissman, 2018). This paper will use the same interpretation with human influencers to indicate the level of pet influencers. There are several popular pet influencers on social media platforms like TikTok. Some of the Mega Pet Influencers include Cielmeowmun, who has 5 million followers on TikTok, Japan and Friends, who has 3.7 million followers, and Calorietiktok, with 1.8 million followers. Examples of Macro Pet Influencers are Siatruffle (427.1k followers) and Forgiforfun (460.5k followers). On the other hand, micro-influencers like usernames @porschemini2b (3,758 followers) and PAAP&MOSHI (4,263 followers) have a smaller following. This paper will focus on Mega Pet Influencers.

Businesses have started to use pet influencers to gain higher engagement rates. In fact, studies have shown that incorporating animals into social media posts can result in a significant increase in engagement rates, with such posts receiving 63% more engagement than the average business-related post. Numerous studies have shown that animals can alleviate loneliness, enhance social support, and improve your emotional state. Therefore, it's not surprising that people are drawn to content featuring our furry

companions. A study conducted by NewsWhip revealed that posts featuring pets generated up to 295% more comments for brands (with an average increase of 89% in comments) (Howard, 2020). The use of pet influencers to promote brands or products has increased significantly in the Thai market. There are many products that use pet influencer marketing, such as potato chips from Lays and dishwashing liquid from Sunlight.

People enjoy watching adorable animal videos in their free time, which come in various styles, such as talking animals dubbed by humans and funny or cute pet videos. There are many reasons that people like to watch cute animal clips. Observe these endearing creatures and take note of their shared physical traits: sizable eyes, round faces, plump bodies, and soft fur that is pleasing to the touch. These characteristics are referred to as "kinderschema," which is a resemblance to the physical attributes of human infants. Our innate Instinct as humans is to feel affection and a natural inclination to provide care when encountering a baby, which is an evolutionary trait that has ensured our survival. This is why we find aesthetically pleasing things to be attractive (NGThai, 2018).

Native advertising involves two important elements, including editorial content and sponsorship disclosure information. The editorial content is typically presented as a well-written news article or report, while the sponsorship information is usually disclosed through phrases like "sponsored by" or "presented by" a particular brand (Interactive Advertising Bureau, 2014). This paper considers the non-educational and sponsorship content from pet influencers in Thailand.

No.	Pet Influencers	Number of followers on TikTok
1	@cielmeowmun	5M
2	@ployy_chuek	4.4M
3	@japanfriends	3.7M
4	@alboandjerry	2.4M
5	@glutastory	1.8M
6	@calorietiktok	1.8M
7	@jengtieow	1.5M
8	@iemthemfamily	1.2M
9	@malithesamoyed	1.1M

 Table 1.1
 Top 15
 Pet Influencers in Thailand

No.	Pet Influencers	Number of followers on TikTok
10	@thanakon	1.0M
11	@yfamilyy	847.7k
12	@mynamepopcorn	840.4k
13	@woonwhystorie	700.6k
14	@mungkuuuud	661.1k
15	@jiewliewanddjiggo	656.8k

 Table 1.1 Top 15 Pet Influencers in Thailand (cont.)

This paper aims to find the impact of pet influencers and their effectiveness in influencing people to repurchase electronic home appliances through content quality, attitude toward pet influencers, pet celebrity endorsement, brand image, and electronic word-of-mouth factors in Bangkok and the Metropolitan Region (including Nakhon Pathom, Nonthaburi, Pathum Thani, Samut Prakan, and Samut Sakhon), Thailand.

1.2 The scope of this study

After the COVID-19 pandemic, people's behavior changed significantly, and they started using more social media platforms, such as TikTok. Thailand is ranked 8th place for the largest user country in 2022 (Marketeer Online, 2023). The pet market in Thailand has grown, and the use of social media platforms has emerged as the new trend for the pet influencer market.

The main goal of this paper is to identify the key factors that influence repurchase intention when using pet influencer marketing for electronic home appliances in Bangkok and the Metropolitan Region (including Nakhon Pathom, Nonthaburi, Pathum Thani, Samut Prakan, and Samut Sakhon), Thailand. The study focuses on six variables -Content Quality, Attitude towards Pet Influencers, Pet Celebrity Endorsement, Brand Image, Electronic Word-of-Mouth, and Trust to determine their impact on the behavior of customers on repurchase intention.

1.3 Research Questions

1. What is the most important factor that affects consumers' repurchase intention of electronic home appliances when using pet influencer marketing?

2. Does content quality to present electronic home appliance products created by pet influencers lead to repurchase intention?

3. Does the positive attitude toward pet influencers impact repurchase intention on electronic home appliance products?

4. Does the pet celebrity endorsement impact the repurchase intention of electronic home appliance products?

5. How does the brand image of using pet influencers impact the repurchase intention of electronic home appliance products?

6. Does the electronic word of mouth from using pet influencers impact the repurchase intention on electronic home appliance products?

7. Does trust in pet influencers impact the repurchase intention of electronic home appliance products?

1.4 Research Objectives

1. To identify the major factors of using pet influencers on electronic home appliance products affecting the repurchase intention.

2. To define the relationship between dependent variables (Content quality, Attitude, Pet celebrity endorsement, Brand image, Electric word of mouth (e-WOM), and Trust) and the independent variable, which is repurchase intention.

3. To provide solutions to product owners for using pet influencer marketing.

CHAPTER II LITERATURE REVIEW

2.1 Content Quality

Content categories include comedy/humor, lifestyle, marketing, and health advice. The content was classified as either educational or non-educational. Within the educational category, videos were further categorized as factual or non-factual, with information validated against peer-reviewed and evidence-based literature (Jafri et al., 2023). The content quality can be assessed by the quality of information presented in the advertisement and entertainment aspect (Hwang & Jeong, 2018). Information quality (IQ) refers to the excellence of content in an information system. (DeLone & McLean 2003). In their research on the impact of social media video user-generated content (UGC) on tourism, Cho and Han (2018) identified four dimensions of video quality: simplicity, gameness, timeliness, and vividness. These factors were found to affect user satisfaction, access intention, and information-sharing intention. In a study conducted by Chen and Tsai (2007), it was found that obtaining relevant information and expected results had a positive impact on the repurchase intention of goods or services. Another study also showed that viewers of ski technology on YouTube believed that the quality of the videos they watch, such as relevance, timeliness, information, and sufficiency, had a positive impact on their satisfaction levels. They further believed that this satisfaction would lead to better cognitive achievement and a greater intention to continue using the product or service (Cho et al., 2023).

The perceived quality of information by customers influences their intention to purchase Airbnb services (Chen & Chang, 2018). The quality of information provided by an online shop is crucial for customer repurchase intention (Wandoko & Panggati, 2022b). In their study, Wang et al. (2012) found that the findings suggest that information quality improvement has the potential to enhance the overall experience of repeat customers. Shim and Jo (2020) found that information quality significantly predicts users' satisfaction and intention to reuse online health information sites. Rahi and Ghani (2018) found a significant relationship between information quality, satisfaction, and intention to continue using e-banking services. The perception of information quality positively influences repurchase intention (Gunawan et al., 2023).

In this paper, we evaluate the quality of non-educational and sponsorship content provided by pet influencers through social media platforms such as TikTok, Instagram, YouTube, and Facebook based on the quality of information, perceived informativeness, audience satisfaction, entertainment value, access intention, and sufficiency.

2.2 Attitude toward Pet Influencers

According to Garg & Joshi (2018), attitude refers to the extent of positive or negative emotions one has towards a specific product or brand. This evaluation is based on personal thoughts and past experiences, such as product quality, customer service, and brand perception. Central attitudes are closely tied to emotions. (Bian et al., 2012).

Attitudes, as found by Conner et al. (2006), influence smoking intentions, and these attitudes can positively affect the repurchase intention of cigarettes. Attitude toward a product affects its repurchase intentions positively, as per the Theory of Reasoned Action (TRA) (Fishbein and Ajzen, 1975; Ünal et al., 2019). The attitude of halal cosmetics can have a positive impact on consumers' inclination to repurchase products, which ultimately leads to an increase in their overall loyalty towards the brand (Hussain et al., 2023). The perception and opinion of consumers towards food truck products play a crucial role in determining whether they will make future purchases. Therefore, understanding consumer attitudes is a vital variable in predicting food truck repurchase intention. A positive attitude will lead to a stronger repurchase intention (Loh & Hassan, 2021).

In this research, attitude toward pet influencers is about emotions or feelings such as their cuteness and affection and a natural inclination to provide care to pets. Their innocent characteristic provides a soft look and sincerity. Their innocent look affects the audience's emotions, shaping their positive attitude toward pet influencers.

2.3 Pet Celebrity Endorsement

The act of celebrity endorsement involves the use of influential public figures to express their support for a brand with the aim of enhancing its attractiveness to potential customers. This marketing approach typically involves the use of prominent personalities in various sectors to create a positive association with a particular product or service, thereby increasing its credibility and appeal among a wider audience (Zamudio, 2016). Shimp (2014) defines celebrity endorsement as the use of individuals or groups who are widely recognized to promote a specific product. This advertising method is effective in capturing consumer attention as people tend to be easily swayed by advertisements featuring celebrities and are more likely to use the products being promoted (Hardilawati et al., 2019). The ability of celebrities to make an impression is the cornerstone of the endorsement strategy (Fleck et al., 2012) and associate their image with the promoted products/brands or transfer their set of associations and communicate the meaning to them (Amos et al., 2008; Singh & Banerjee, 2021). The way an endorser or celebrity is perceived can influence their credibility (Moldovan & Ciornea, 2019; Bekk & Spörle, 2010; Chetioui et al., 2020).

Laila and Sjabadhyni (2017) conducted a study on Indonesian Instagram users' online spending behavior. Their findings suggest that celebrity endorsements increase the likelihood of repeat purchases. Although the celebrity endorser may not have a significant effect on the repurchase intention of cosmetic products among millennial women in Indonesia, this could be due to the mediation by other variables such as brand attitude, brand credibility, and self-brand connection. This mediation can make the indirect effect of celebrity endorsers on repurchase intention significant (Chiquita et al., 2021). Research suggests that the use of a well-chosen celebrity endorser can significantly increase the likelihood of customers repurchasing Scarlett Whitening products (Prapanca, 2023). The research conducted by Domfeh et al. (2018), Ponggeng & Mulia (2020), and Widyasari & Suparna (2022) suggests that celebrity endorsements have a positive effect on consumer repurchase intentions. Research indicates that there exists a weak positive correlation between the use of celebrity endorsement and the likelihood of customers repurchasing soccer shoes. Furthermore, celebrity endorsement has been found to have a positive effect on the repurchase intention of soccer shoes, highlighting the effectiveness of such endorsements in the marketing of this particular product (Zarkasi et al., 2023)

The paper discusses pets who can use influential public figures to endorse a product and attract audiences, termed pet celebrity endorsements. This academic paper delves into the impact that pet celebrities can have on the reputation and credibility of electronic home appliances. Specifically, it explores how the endorsement of such devices by these well-known animals can instill trust in their followers and potentially lead to repurchase intentions.

2.4 Brand image

Brand image refers to the perception that a brand creates in the minds of its customers. This includes their perceptions of the benefits, attributes, beliefs, and experiences that are associated with the brand. Essentially, brand image is the customer's evaluation of the positive and negative points of a brand that they remember and perceive. A positive brand image can help foster customer loyalty. It's important to note that a brand is evaluated more favorably when it's rooted in customer experiences (Wijaya, 2023). The concept of brand image pertains to the manner in which a consumer perceives the qualities of a product, which may be influenced by personal experiences or the information they have gathered from different forms of media. This perception ultimately shapes the consumer's overall impression of the product and its associated brand (Wagiswari, 2022; Kotler et al., 2021; Lalaounis, 2021; Keller & Swaminathan, 2020). The brand image is how people perceive a brand based on their past experiences and information. When consumers have a positive brand image, they are more likely to buy from that brand. Essentially, the brand image is a collection of perceptions that are all interconnected in people's minds (Cahya & Jannah, 2022). The brand image is a crucial factor that reflects consumer beliefs and perceptions. A positive brand image adds value to products and services, creating brand equity, which is an asset for a company (Srisusilawati et al., 2023).

Low-cost carrier brand image positively influences consumer repurchase intention (Pratisthita et al., 2022). According to Huang et al. (2019), the brand image has a significant and positive influential on the intention of repurchasing ecotourism products. Likewise, research by Yasa (2018), Winarto and Widyastuti (2021), and Lianto (2019) suggests that brand image positively affects consumer repurchase intention. The brand image is the collective perception of a brand formed from past experiences, which impacts an individual's intention to repurchase the product (Suryana & Dasuki, 2013). According to the findings of Tariq et al. (2013) and Wu et al. (2011), the perception of a brand by consumers significantly influences their likelihood to repurchase a product. This highlights the importance of creating a strong and favorable brand image that resonates with the target audience. The research provides insight for Berrybenka and online shopping customers to improve brand image, leading to increased repurchase intention and sales (Wijaya & Astuti, 2018).

In this research paper, we delve into the intriguing topic of how pet influencers play a crucial role in shaping the brand image of electronic home appliance brands. Additionally, we explore the impact of customers' experiences with the brand on their repurchase intention in the electronic home appliance industry.

2.5 Electronic word of mouth (E-WOM)

The term E-WOM refers to consumers sharing product information through new media (Yan, 2017). E-WOM refers to any positive or negative feedback or statement made online by customers about a product, company, or content. This information is widely accessible to various individuals and organizations (Ismagilova, Dwivedi, Slade, Williams, 2017). WOM is a tool for people to communicate with each other. Nowadays, a new way of communicating through electronic word-of-mouth or E-WOM has emerged. The term E-WOM refers to all informal communication over the Internet that is aimed at consumers and relates to the use, characteristics, or sellers of products or services (Huete-Alcocer, 2017). Electronic word-of-mouth (E-WOM) from online forums is a crucial source for influencing people's decisions. It refers to consumers sharing information within the community, according to Babi et al. (2015). Word-of-mouth marketing (E-WOM) can greatly influence a company's reputation, whether it's positive or negative. This depends on the individuals who share their feedback or comments after trying the products or services. Through personal storytelling and positive reviews on social media platforms like Instagram, friends, and colleagues can help spread the word and make the product more well-known, ultimately benefiting the customers (Junyadumrongkul, 2022).

E-WOM (Electronic Word of Mouth) is a crucial variable that significantly impacts a company's repurchase intention. Unlike information from the company itself, E-WOM comes from other users who have firsthand experience with the product or service, providing a unique perspective. Positive E-WOM, in the form of testimonials, recommendations, and shared thoughts, can foster 2-way relationships with both existing and prospective users on social media. This can create a buzz around the product and build a positive alumni community, ultimately leading to increased repurchasing intention. E-WOM and user satisfaction can trigger repurchase intention behavior in the MOOC (Massive Open Online Course) context (Kuswardi & Sanny, 2023). E-WOM is positively associated with repurchase intention (Tandon et al., 2020). E-WOM positively impacts customer repurchase intention (Wandoko & Panggati, 2022). Quality of electronic word-of-mouth (E-WOM) has a positive impact on consumers' repurchase intention, while quantity has a negative effect. The quality and credibility of electronic word-ofmouth (E-WOM) have an indirect impact on the intention of repurchasing by establishing a sense of trust with the online seller (Matute et al., 2016). The electronic word-of-mouth shared by customers has a significant impact on their decision to repurchase a service (Wei, Miao, and Huang 2013; Zhang et al. 2021). Sharing electronic word-of-mouth (E-WOM) often results in a greater repurchase intention (Williams and Soutar 2009).

This paper defines electronic word of mouth as comments and posts in the form of text or video on social media platforms. These comments and posts reflect people's thoughts and experiences about a product or service, which they share with their social media circle about pet influencers that people like.

2.6 Trust

Trust is having confidence in others based on their situation and social context. Trusted individuals are more likely to be followed than untrusted ones when making decisions. Trust can be indicated through various factors such as competency, kindness, and honesty (Wijaya, 2023). F. Ma (2018) explains that trust is crucial for successful interpersonal relationships. The interpersonal trust model defines trust as the relationship between a truster and a trustee. According to Lin and Wang (2018), trust is the result of acceptance and the motivation for people to accept something. Trust is defined as a person's confidence or belief that can influence their actions and increase their willingness to take risks as a result of their trust in someone or something. When considering the impact of celebrities on consumer behavior, credibility is crucial (Lars Bergkvist, 2016). Lou (2019) discovered that informative and entertaining influencer marketing content can impact customers' trust in advertising. Consumers attach a strong belief in a brand's superiority to trust in the industry (Firmansyah & Ali, 2019).

Based on research conducted by Flavian et al. (2006), online trust has a significant impact on customer loyalty and their intention to repurchase, including their preference for online retailers and frequency of visits to online sites. There is a significant correlation between trust and repurchase intention among online customers. Retailers can increase customer satisfaction to encourage repurchase intention. Establishing customer trust is an essential component in developing a strong inclination to repurchase from e-marketplaces in Indonesia. This is due to the fact that customers must be confident in the reliability and security of the platform in order to feel comfortable making repeat purchases. Without a foundation of trust, e-marketplaces may struggle to retain customers and maintain a profitable business. Therefore, it is imperative that these platforms prioritize establishing a sense of trust with their customer base to ensure continued success (Wandoko & Panggati, 2022). The users' trust in the website increases their likelihood of making repeat purchases (Şehirli, 2023). Trust plays a critical factor in determining whether a customer will make a repeat purchase online or not (Punyatoya, 2019). Trust is one of the crucial factors that positively affect repurchase intention (Trivedi & Yadav, 2019).

This paper investigates how trust in pet influencers affects willingness to take risks, focusing on informative and entertaining influencer marketing strategies. Trust is how someone behaves towards another person based on their perception of them. This is influenced by cognitive and emotional factors, such as how they assess alternative responses to different situations and the beliefs and feelings they have. Emotions play a role in forming intentions and motivating human actions, which are influenced by personal traits, preferences, commitments, and influencers.

2.7 Repurchase Intention

The intention to repurchase serves as a substitute for actual purchase behavior (Liang et al., 2018). Experienced customers' likelihood to repurchase a product from the same online seller is known as repurchase intention (Wu et al., 2020; Zhang, Gu et al., 2018), or their intent to purchase products or services from the same company again (Trivedi & Yadav 2019). Repurchase intention captures a customer's likelihood to repurchase a service from the same company based on their current experience (Hellier et al. 2003). When customers repeatedly choose to use a company's products or services, it can be a strong indicator of their intention to make future purchases from the same company (Subawa, 2020).

The likelihood of customers buying the same product from the same brand is the meaning of repurchase intention for this paper.



2.8 Conceptual Framework

Figure 2.1 Conceptual Framework

Table 2.1Hypothesis

	Hypothesis
Hypothesis 1	Content Quality positively influences Repurchase Intention
Hypothesis 2	Attitude toward pet influencers positively influences Repurchase
	Intention
Hypothesis 3	Pet Celebrity Endorsement positively influence Repurchase Intention
Hypothesis 4	Brand Image positively positively influence Repurchase Intention
Hypothesis 5	Electric Word of Mouth (E-WOM) positively influence Repurchase
	Intention



CHAPTER III METHODOLOGY

3.1 Research Methodology

The aim of this research is to investigate the impact of several variables, including content quality, attitude towards pet influencers, pet celebrity endorsements, brand image, electronic word-of-mouth, and trust on repurchase intention of electronic home appliances. This paper will be using a quantitative method to gather the data through online surveys created with Google Forms. The surveys will be provided in Thai and will target 200 respondents.

3.1.1 Sampling

For this study, only individuals who are willing to participate in an online questionnaire should complete the survey. The survey is targeted towards individuals residing in Bangkok and the Metropolitan Region (including Nakhon Pathom, Nonthaburi, Pathum Thani, Samut Prakan, and Samut Sakhon), Thailand, who have watched pet influencers endorsing household electronics over the past six months and aged 18 or over.

3.1.2 Research Instrument

The data was collected using convenience sampling in a quantitative approach. The survey is separated into 4 parts. The screening questions comprise 5 questions to verify that the respondents are eligible for this research and have the required experience. These questions are designed to eliminate respondents who are under 18 and those who lack experience with pet influencers endorsing electronic home appliance products. The screening question will aid researchers in obtaining precise data for analysis.

The objective of the study is to determine the factors that influence repurchase intention for electronic home appliance products through the use of pet influencer marketing. The survey will also assess the level of agreement among respondents towards the questions. In the study, there are 6 independent and 1 dependent variable. The first dependent variable is content quality, and it comprises 14 questions. The second dependent variable is the attitude toward pet influencers, which includes 7 questions. The third dependent variable is the pet celebrity endorsement, which has 5 questions. Fourth, the brand image variable consists of 6 questions. Fifth, the electronic word-of-mouth variable has 5 questions. The sixth variable is trust, which is measured with 6 questions. Lastly, the repurchase intention variable consists of 6 questions. Each question has a 1-5 scale for the answer (1 = strongly disagree, 2 = disagree, 3 = indifference, 4 = agree and 5 = strongly agree). The respondents should choose only 1 answer.

In the third section, this part will focus on the behavior of social media users when watching clips of pet influencers. This section comprises four questions that aim to understand users' spending habits on social media, the factors that influence them to watch, like, and comment on pet influencers' videos, and the time when they prefer to watch such videos.

In the final section of the survey, respondents will be asked to provide their demographic information, including age, gender, education, income, and occupation. This information will help the researcher identify which variables have the most influence on particular groups of people and their repurchase intentions.

3.2 Data Collection

Data collection was used with online questionnaires using Google Forms is a tool for creating questionnaires. and distribute questionnaires through various channels, including social networks such as Facebook, Instagram, Line application, and electronic mail (Email), starting the survey on 14 October 2013 to 5 November 2023. The process of collecting primary data from 213 respondents will be undertaken to facilitate an indepth analysis. Upon completion of this process, the data will be subjected to meticulous scrutiny to obtain valuable insights. The author's contact information is provided to ensure respondents understand the questions in the online questionnaire. The data will be analyzed using SPSS (Statistical Package Social Science). Data was collected through an online survey that specifically targeted people who watched pet influencer videos in the past six months. This research was conducted for 23 days. The survey participation links were shared through chat and social media channels to cover Bangkok and the Metropolitan Region (including Nakhon Pathom, Nonthaburi, Pathum Thani, Samut Prakan, and Samut Sakhon), Thailand.



CHAPTER IV FINDING

Based on the survey, 213 samples were collected, and respondents were categorized into four groups according to their demographic factors, as shown in the table below:

4.1 Demographic Factors of Respondents

4.1.1 Gender

Table 4.1	Frequency	Gender
------------------	-----------	--------

		Frequency	Percent
Valid	Male	58	27.2
	Female	155	72.8
	Total	213	100.0

Based on the data collected through the survey, it can be inferred that a total of 213 respondents participated in the study. Out of these, 155 individuals, or 72.8% of the sample, identified as female. The remaining 58 respondents, or 27.2% of the sample, identified as male.

4.1.2 Age Range

		Frequency	Percent
Valid	18-24	51	23.9
	25-34	113	53.1
	35 - 44	31	14.6
	45 - 54	18	8.5
	Total	213	100.0

Table 4.2Frequency Age

The majority of the respondents of this survey were aged between 25 and 34, 113 people or 53.1%, followed by 18-24 at 51 people or 23.9%. Thirty-one people (14.6%) aged between 35-44 participated in this survey. The minority group is people aged between 45 and 54, with only 18 people or only 8.5%.

4.1.3 Occupation

Table 4.3	Frequency	Occupation
-----------	-----------	------------

Occupation	Frequency	Percent
Full-time student	54	25.4
Private sector officer	67	31.5
Government officer	17	8.0
A freelancer	32	15.0
State enterprise employees	20	9.4
Businessman	23	10.8
Total	213	100.0

The majority group of respondents, comprising 31.5% or 67 people, worked in the private sector. Full-time students, with 25% or 54 people, were the second-largest group. Freelancers came in third, with 15% or 32 people participating in the survey, followed by businessmen at 10.8% or 23 people, state enterprise employees at 9.4% or 20 people, and government officers at 8% or 17 people, respectively.

4.1.4 Income

Income	Frequency	Percent
Less than 10,000 THB	35	16.4
10,000 THB - 30,000 THB	91	42.7
30,001 THB - 50,000 THB	50	23.5
50,001 THB - 70,000 THB	20	9.4
Over 70,000 THB	17	8.0
Total	213	100.0

Table 4.4	Frequency In	come
-----------	---------------------	------

The survey results show that the majority of participants, 91 people or 42.7%, had an income ranging from 10,000 THB to 30,000 THB. 23.5% of the respondents had an income ranging from 30,001 THB to 50,000 THB, which is equal to 50 people. Additionally, 16.4% of the participants had an income of less than 10,000 THB on average, followed by 9.4% of respondents who had an income ranging from 50,001 THB to 70,000 THB. The remaining participants had an income of over 70,000 THB.

4.1.5 Education

 Table 4.5
 Frequency Education

	010	Frequency	Percent
Valid	Bachelor's degree or equivalent	152	71.4
	Master's degree or higher	46	21.6
	High School or equivalent	15	7.0
	Total	213	100.0

According to the survey, out of the total participants, 152 people, or 71.4%, hold a bachelor's degree or its equivalent. Forty-six people, or 21.6% of the respondents, have a master's degree or higher educational level. Furthermore, 15 participants, or 7% of the total, have completed high school or have an equivalent education.

4.2 Behavior on social media platforms on watching pet influencers' clips

Time use on social media	Frequency	Percent
Rarely (Less than 1-3 hours/day)	22	10.3
Sometimes (3-5 hours/day)	53	24.9
Often (5-7 hours/day)	70	32.9
Usually (8-10 hours/day)	45	21.1
All the time (More than 10 hours/day)	23	10.8
Total	213	100.0

 Table 4.6
 Frequency of Time use on social media

The survey results show that social media is widely used among the participants, with varying levels of activity. The largest group of individuals, 70 people (32.9%) use social media very actively and spend 5 to 7 hours every day on their accounts, followed by 53 people (24.9%) who spend around 3-5 hours/day, 45 people or 21.1% how usually active on their social media around 8-10 hours a day, and 23 people who are very active on their social media more than 10 hours a day, respectively. A small minority of the participants, 22 people (10.3%), rarely use social media and spend less than 1 to 3 hours per day on their accounts.

4.2.2 Subjective norm on watching Pet Influencers' content

These groups or individuals have the most influence on me to watch videos of pet influencers' social media platforms (Facebook, Instagram, TikTok, and X (Twitter)).

No.	Detail	Frequency	Percentage compares with total respondents
1	Myself	175	82.16%
2	My family	73	34.27%
3	My relatives	37	17.37%
4	My friends or acquaintance	131	61.50%
5	Celebrity and Influencer	69	32.39%
6	My Pet	59	27.69%

 Table 4.7 Frequency of Groups or individual influences to watch content from pet influencers.

Out of 213 participants, 175 people stated that they watched pet influencers' videos for their own enjoyment. The second group of people, which consisted of 131 out of 213 individuals, or 61.5% of them, were influenced to watch these videos by their friends or acquaintances. Family members ranked third in terms of influence, with 73 people, or 34.27%, reporting that their family members influenced them to watch pet influencer content. 69 people (32.39%) reported being influenced by celebrities and influencers, followed by 59 people who said their pets influenced them, and 37 people (17.37%) who said their relatives influenced them to watch the content.

4.2.3 Active behavior on pet influencers' content.

These groups or individuals have the most influence on me to have active behavior (share and comment) on the videos of pet influencers on my social media account (Facebook, Instagram, TikTok, and X (Twitter)).

No.	Detail	Frequency	Percentage compares with total respondents
1	Myself	162	63.85%
2	My family	49	23%
3	My relatives	42	19.72%
4	My friends or acquaintance	123	57.75%
5	Celebrity and Influencer	50	23.47%
6	My Pet	40	18.78%
		404	

 Table 4.8 Groups or individual influences to do active behavior on pet influencers' content.

Out of the 213 respondents, 162 people (63.85%) stated that they engage with pet influencers' content because of their own interests. 123 out of the 213 people (57.75%) stated that they were influenced by their friends or acquaintances to engage with pet influencers' content. 50 respondents, or 23.47%, mentioned that they were influenced by celebrities and influencers to engage with pet influencers' content. The fourth group of people, consisting of 49 respondents (23%), were influenced by their families to actively participate in pet influencers' content. The next group, with 42 respondents (19.72%), were influenced by their relatives. Finally, the last group, consisting of 40 respondents (18.78%), were influenced by their pets to engage with pet influencers' content.

4.3 Content Quality

4.3.1 Content Quality Reliability Test

Reliability Statistics			
Cronbach's Alpha	Cronbach's Alpha Based on Standardized Items	N of Items	
.935	.935	14	

Table 4.9 Reliability Statistic

The content quality variable is reliable and consistent, as indicated by a Cronbach's alpha of 0.935, exceeding the threshold of 0.7.

4.3.2 Content Quality Descriptive Analysis

Table 4.10 Content Quality – Descriptive Analysis

(N = 213))	
-----------	---	--

	Mean	Std. Deviation
I think that pet influencers' video provide various information of	3.96	.800
the electronic home appliance product.		
In my opinion, pet influencers offer trustworthy insights on	3.88	.789
electronic household appliances.		
I think pet influencers create useful content.	4.10	.764
Pet influencer provide information that meet my viewing purpose.	3.84	.881
The information provided by pet influencers on electronic home	4.00	.765
appliances is easily understandable.		
I think pet influencers make home appliance content easier to explain.	4.15	.785
I think pet influencers provide content that worth my time to watch.	4.16	.744
I am generally satisfied with the contents presented by pet influences.	4.23	.718
I don't get bored watching pet influencers promote electronic	4.26	.811
home appliances products.		
I like to watch pet influencers introduce electronic home appliance	4.34	.758
products.		
I like to visit pet influencers' profiles to watch their new video.	4.16	.791
I am willing to watch content featuring electronic home appliances	4.12	.869
presented by pet influencers again.		
I think pet influencers provide various content about electronic	3.91	.839
home appliance products.		
In my opinion, pet influencers provide enough content about	3.89	.839
electronic home appliance products.		

In order to determine the quality of content, 14 main attributes were considered, and the respondents' level of agreement was measured on a Likert scale of 1 - 5. A score of 1 indicated strongly disagree, while a score of 5 indicated strongly agree. According to the results, the statement "I like to watch pet influencers introduce electronic home appliance products" received the highest mean score of 4.34, followed by "I don't get
bored watching pet influencers promote electronic home appliances products" with a score of 4.26, "I am generally satisfied with the contents presented by pet influences" (mean =4.23), "I think pet influencers provide content that worth my time to watch" (mean =4.16), "I like to visit pet influencers' profiles to watch their new video" has the same mean with the previous one, "I think pet influencers make home appliances content easier to explain" (mean =4.12), "I think pet influencers create useful content" (mean =4.10), "The information provided by pet influencers on electronic home appliances is easily understandable" (mean =4.00), "I think that pet influencers' video provide various information of the electronic home appliance product" (mean =3.96), "I think pet influencers provide various content about electronic home appliance products" (mean = 3.91), "In my opinion, pet influencers provide enough content about electronic home appliance products" (mean =3.89), "In my opinion, pet influencers offer trustworthy insights on electronic household appliances" (mean =3.84), respectively.

The most influential one that affects their repurchase intention is that "I like to watch pet influencers introduce electronic home appliance products," and the least is "Pet influencer provide information that meets my viewing purpose."

4.3.3 Differences between Groups on Content Quality

4.3.3.1 ANOVA Test (Difference between two or more groups)

There are significant differences in content quality among respondents based on respondents' education level and average monthly income.

• Level of Education (ANOVA)

Dependent Variable	(I) Your highest level of education.	(J) Your highest level of education.	Mean Difference (I-J)	Std. Error	Sig.
I think pet influencers make	High School or	Bachelor's degree	.661*	.208	.005
home appliances content	equivalent	or equivalent			
easier to explain.					

Table 4.11 Level of Education - ANOVA

People with high school or equivalent education tend to consider

content quality more than the respondents who have bachelor's degrees or equivalent (Sig. = 0.005).

• Average Monthly Income (ANOVA)

Dependent Variable	(I) Average monthly income.	(J) Average monthlyincome.	Mean Difference (I-J)	Std. Error	Sig.
I think that pet influencers'	30,001-50,000 THB	10,000-30,000 THB	428*	.137	.021
video provide various	3 90	50,001-70,000 THB	690*	.206	.010
information of the electronic					
home appliance product.					
I think pet influencers create	30,001-50,000 THB	10,000-30,000 THB	584*	.129	.000
useful content.		50,001-70,00 <mark>0 T</mark> HB	570 [*]	.194	.036
		Over 70,000 THB	614*	.205	.031
Pet influencer provide	30,001-50,000 THB	10,000-30,000 THB	551*	.150	.003
information that meet my	Sales	50,001-70,000 THB	690*	.226	.025
viewing purpose.					
I think pet influencers provide	30,001-50,000 THB	50,001-70,000 THB	610*	.193	.019
content that worth my time to			-//		
watch.			/		
I am generally satisfied with	50,001-70,000 THB	Less than 10,000 THB	.600*	.198	.027
the contents presented by pet	98175				
influences.					
I like to visit pet influencers'	30,001-50,000 THB	10,000-30,000 THB	475*	.135	.006
profiles to watch their new video.		50,001-70,000 THB	650*	.204	.016
I am willing to watch content	50,001-70,000 THB	30,001-50,000 THB	$.700^{*}$.226	.022
featuring electronic home					
appliances presented by pet					
influencers again.					

Table 4.12 Average Monthly Income - ANOV.	A
---	---

The respondents who earn between 10,000 THB - 30,000 THB, 50,001 THB - 70,000 THB, and over 70,000 THB pay more attention to content quality than the respondents who earn between 30,001 THB - 50,000 THB. Moreover, people

who earn less than 10,000THB/month prioritize content quality less than those earning 50,001THB – 70,000THB.

4.4 Attitude toward Pet Influencers

4.4.1 Reliability Test

Table 4.13	Attitude toward	Pet Influencers	- Reliability Test
-------------------	-----------------	------------------------	--------------------

Reliability Statistics				
Cronbach's Alpha	Cronbach's Alpha Based on Standardized Items	N of Items		
.851	.865	7		

The Cronbach's alpha of 0.851 shows a reliable and consistent attitude toward pet influencers, surpassing the 0.7 threshold.

4.4.2 **Descriptive Analysis**

Table 4.14 Attitude toward Pet Influencers - Descriptive Analysis

(N = 213)

Attitude toward Pet Influencers	Mean	Std. Deviation
I think that pet influencers are adorable.	4.55	.586
I think that pet influencers are good entertainers.	4.48	.634
I associate the pet influencer with the quality of the electronic	3.88	.874
home appliance products.		
I think pet influencers are funny.	4.20	.776
I feel calm when watching videos from pet influencers.	4.45	.617
I feel relaxed when watching videos from pet influencers.	4.46	.648
I think that pet influencers are innocent.	4.54	.618

Based on the survey, there are seven attributes that determine the attitude of respondents toward pet influencers. A Likert scale of 1-5 was used to measure the level

of agreement, with 1 indicating "strongly disagree" and 5 indicating "strongly agree." The most effective question was "I think that pet influencers are adorable" which had a mean score of 4.55. This was followed by "I think that pet influencers are innocent" (mean = 4.54). "I think that pet influencers are good entertainers," which had a mean score of 4.48., "I feel relaxed when watching videos from pet influencers" (mean = 4.46), "I feel calm when watching videos from pet influencers" (mean = 4.46), "I feel calm when watching videos from pet influencers" (mean = 4.45), "I think pet influencers are funny" (mean = 4.20), and "I associate the pet influencer with the quality of the electronic home appliance products" (mean = 3.88), respectively.

4.4.3 Differences between Groups on Attitude toward Pet Influencers

4.4.3.1 T-Test (Different between two groups)

For Attitudes toward pet influencers, there are significant differences between males and females.

Table 4.15	Gender	- T-Test
-------------------	--------	----------

Group Statistics							
	Gender	N	Mean	Std. Deviation	Std. Error Mean		
I feel relaxed when watching videos from	Male	58	4.29	.726	.095		
pet influencers.	Female	155	4.53	.606	.049		
I think that pet influencers are innocent.	Male	58	4.36	.742	.097		
10 0	Female	155	4.61	.552	.044		

Table 4.16 Gender - T-Test

		Levene's Test for Equality of Variances	t-test f	or Equality	y of Means
		Sig.	t	Sig. (2-tailed)	Mean Difference
I feel relaxed when	Equal variances assumed	.175	-2.392	.018	236
watching videos from pet influencers.	Equal variances not assumed		-2.205	.030	236
I think that pet influencers	Equal variances assumed	.001	-2.605	.010	244
are innocent.	Equal variances not assumed		-2.282	.025	244

Based on the survey conducted, it was found that female respondents (n=155, mean=4.53) feel more relaxed while watching videos from pet influencers than male respondents (n=58, mean=4.29) who feel relaxed. Additionally, female respondents (n=155, mean=4.16) believe that pet influencers are innocent, more than male respondents (n=58, mean=4.36), with a significant difference for their attitude toward pet influencers.

4.4.3.2 ANOVA Test (Difference between two or more groups)

For attitudes toward pet influencers, there are significant differences among the respondents' groups, including age range and average monthly income.

• Age Range (ANOVA)

Dependent Variable	(I) Age range (years old)	(J) Age range (years old)	Mean Difference (I-J)	Std. Error	Sig.
I think that pet influencers	18-24	25-34	4 00*	.095	.000
are adorable.	45 - <mark>54</mark>	18-24	.523*	.154	.005

Table 4.17 Age Range - ANOVA

People aged 25-34 years old and 45–54 years old think that pet influencers are more adorable than people aged around 18-24 years old with Sig. equal to 0.000 and 0.005, respectively.

• Average Monthly Income (ANOVA)

Table 4.18 Average Monthly Income - ANOVA

Dependent Variable	(I) Average monthly income.	(J) Average monthly income.	Mean Difference (I-J)	Std. Error	Sig.
I think that pet influencers	Less than 10,000 THB	10,000-30,000 THB	409*	.113	.004
are adorable.		50,001-70,000 THB	521*	.160	.013

People with an average monthly income of 10,000 THB - 30,000

THB and 50,001THB – 70,000THB think that pet influencers are more adorable than people who have an average income of less than 10,000 THB (Sig. equal to 0.004 and 0.013).

4.5 Pet Celebrity Endorsement

4.5.1 Reliability Test

Table 4.19 Pet Celebrity Endorsement - Reliability Test

Reliability Statistics				
Cronbach's Alpha Cronbach's Alpha Based on Standardized Items N of Items				
.860	.861	5		

The Cronbach's alpha of 0.860 shows a reliable and consistent pet celebrity endorsement, surpassing the 0.7 threshold.

4.5.2 Descriptive Analysis

Table 4.20 Pet Celebrity Endorsement - Descriptive Analysis

(N = 213)

	Mean	Std. Deviation
I recognize electronic home appliance brands that use pet celebrity endorsers.	3.93	.835
I think that pet influencers promote electronic home appliances as being reliable.	3.92	.800
I think that pet influencers' image aligns with the electronic home appliance products.	4.00	.813
In my opinion, pet influencers have become increasingly influential in promoting electronic home appliances.	3.98	.809
I don't see any harm in pets promoting products or services, as long as they are treated well.	4.09	.836

According to the survey, there are five attributes that determine respondents' endorsement of pet celebrities. The respondents were asked to rate their level of agreement on a Likert scale of 1-5, where 1 indicates "strongly disagree" and 5 indicates "strongly agree." The most effective question was "I don't see any harm in pets promoting products

or services, as long as they are treated well," which scored a mean of 4.09. This was followed by "I think that the image of pet influencers aligns with electronic home appliance products" (mean = 4.00), "In my opinion, pet influencers have become increasingly influential in promoting electronic home appliances" (mean = 3.98), "I recognize electronic home appliance brands that use pet celebrity endorsers" (mean = 3.93), and "I think that pet influencers promote electronic home appliances as being reliable" (mean = 3.92).

4.5.3 Differences between groups on pet celebrity endorsement

4.5.3.1 ANOVA Test (Difference between two or more groups)

There are significant differences in the Pet Celebrity Endorsements variable based on age range and average monthly income.

• Age Range (ANOVA)

Table 4.21Age Range - ANOVA

Dependent Variable	(I) Age range (years old)	(J) Age range (years old)	Mean Difference (I-J)	Std. Error	Sig.
In my opinion, pet influencers have	18-24	35 - 44	.576*	.180	.010
become increasingly influential in					
promoting electronic home appliances.					

Respondents aged 18-24 years old think pet influencers have become increasingly influential in promoting electronic home appliances more than those aged 35-44 years old (Sig. equal to 0.10). • Average Monthly Income (ANOVA)

Dependent Variable	(I) Average monthly income.	(J) Average monthly income.	Mean Difference (I-J)	Std. Error	Sig.
In my opinion, pet influencers	30,001-50,000 THB	50,001-70,000 THB	690*	.210	.012
have become increasingly					
influential in promoting					
electronic home appliances.					

 Table 4.22
 Average Monthly Income - ANOVA

Respondents with an average monthly income of 50,001 THB - 70,000 THB think that pet influencers have become increasingly influential in promoting electronic home appliances more than respondents than those with a 30,001 THB - 50,000 THB with Sig. equal to 0.012.

4.6 Brand Image

4.6.1 Reliability Test

Table 4.23	Brand	Image -	Reliability	Statistics
-------------------	-------	---------	-------------	-------------------

Reliability Statistics				
Cronbach's Alpha	Cronbach's Alpha Based on Standardized Items	N of Items		
.895	.896	6		

The Cronbach's alpha of 0.895 shows a reliable and consistent

brand image, surpassing the 0.7 threshold.

4.6.2 Descriptive Analysis

Table 4.24 Brand Image - Descriptive Analysis

(N	=	21	3)

Brand Image	Mean	Std. Deviation
The electronic home appliance brand that pet influencers advertise	3.98	.730
is nice.		
The electronic home appliance brand that pet influencers advertise	3.93	.835
is a brand that does not disappoint its customers.		
The electronic home appliance brand that pet influencers advertise	3.90	.884
is one of the best brands in the sector.		
The electronic home appliance products that pet influencers	3.92	.846
endorse have characteristics that other brands do not.		
The electronic home appliance brand that pet influencers endorse	3.92	.838
has a personality that distinguishes itself from competitor brands.		
The electronic home appliance brand I used is one of the best	3.91	.845
brands in the sector.		

A descriptive statistics revealed that six attributes determine how people view brand image when using pet influencers marketing. The respondents rated their level of agreement on a scale of 1-5, where 1 indicates "strongly disagree" and 5 indicates "strongly agree." The most effective question was, "The electronic home appliance brand that pet influencers advertise is nice," which scored a mean of 3.98. This was followed by "The electronic home appliance brand that pet influencers advertise is a brand that does not disappoint its customers" (mean = 3.93). "The electronic home appliance products that pet celebrity endorsement have characteristics that other brands do not" and "The electronic home appliance brand that pet influencers endorse has a personality that distinguishes itself from competitor brands" have the same mean of 3.92 followed by "The electronic home appliance brand I used is one of the best brands in the sector" (mean = 3.91) and "The electronic home appliance brand that pet influencers advertise advertise is a personality is one of the best brands in the sector" (mean = 3.90).

4.6.3 Differences between Groups on Brand Image

4.6.3.1 ANOVA Test (Difference between two or more groups)

There are significant differences in brand image perception

among different age range, levels of education, and monthly income averages of respondents.

• Age Range (ANOVA)

Table 4.25Age Range - ANOVA

Dependent Variable	(I) Age range (years old)	(J) Age range (years old)	Mean Difference (I-J)	Std. Error	Sig.
The electronic home appliance brand	45 - 54	35 - 44	.703*	.212	.007
that pet influencers advertise is nice.					

Respondents aged 45-54 years old view electronic home appliance

brands advertised by pet influencers is nicer than those aged 35-44 years old (Sig. = 0.007).

• Level of Education (ANOVA)

Table 4.26 Level of Education - ANOVA

Dependent Variable	(I) Your highest level of education.	(J) Your highest level of education.	Mean Difference (I-J)	Std. Error	Sig.
The electronic home appliance	High School or	Bachelor's degree	.512*	.194	.027
brands that pet influencers	equivalent	or equivalent			
advertise is nice.					

Respondents with high school education think pet influencers' advertised electronic home appliance brands are nicer than those with a bachelor's degree or equivalent.

• Average Monthly Income (ANOVA)

Dependent Variable	(I) Average monthly income.	(J) Average monthly income.	Mean Difference (I-J)	Std. Error	Sig.
The electronic home appliance	50,001-70,000 THB	Less than 10,000 THB	.650*	.200	.013
brand that pet influencers		30,001-50,000 THB	$.610^{*}$.189	.014
advertise is nice.					
The electronic home appliance	30,001-50,000 THB	50,001-70,000 THB	760 [*]	.229	.011
brand that pet influencers	5 01	15			
advertise is one of the best		~			
brands in the sector.					
The electronic home appliance	50,001-70,000 THB	Less than 10,000 THB	.721*	.229	.019
brand that pet influencers endorse	4	10,000-30,000 THB	.616*	.202	.026
has a personality that		30,001-50,000 THB	.810 [*]	.216	.002
distinguishes itself from					
competito <mark>r brands.</mark>					

 Table 4.27
 Average Monthly Income - ANOVA

Respondents earning 50,001 THB – 70,000 THB monthly prefer electronic home appliance brands promoted by pet influencers compared to those earning less than 10,000 THB and 30,001 THB – 50,000 THB average monthly income.

Respondents with a monthly income of 50,001 THB -70,000 THB said that the electronic home appliance brand that pet influencers advertise is one of the best brands in the sector, more than respondents with 30,001 THB – 50,000 THB average monthly income.

According to the survey results, respondents with a monthly income of 50,001 to 70,000 THB said that the electronic home appliance brand that is endorsed by pet influencers has a personality that distinguishes itself from competitor brands as compared to those who earn less than 10,000 THB, 10,000 THB to 30,000 THB, and 30,001 to 50,000 THB average monthly income.

4.7 Electronic Word of Mouth (E-WOM)

4.7.1 Reliability Test

Table 4.28 Electronic Word of Mouth - Reliability Statistics

Reliability Statistics					
Cronbach's Alpha Cronbach's Alpha Based on Standardized Items N of Items					
.862	.866	5			

The electronic word of mouth is reliable and consistent, with a Cronbach's alpha of 0.862, exceeding the 0.7 threshold.

4.7.2 Descriptive Analysis

Table 4.29 Electronic Word of Mouth - Descriptive Statistic

(N = 213)

Electronic Word of Mouth	Mean	Std. Deviation
I like to share the video of pet influencers that I like on my personal	4.18	.764
social media account	5//	
I like to share positive comment on the cute video of pet influencer.	3.93	.921
I like to talk about funny videos of pet influencers with my friends	4.21	.769
on my social media.		
My friend sent me a video of pet influencers.	4.23	.772
I saw my circle share the video of pet influencers on their social	4.23	.732
media platforms.		

A descriptive statistics revealed that five attributes determine electronic word of mouth when using pet influencers marketing. The respondents rated their level of agreement on a scale of 1-5, where 1 indicates "strongly disagree" and 5 indicates "strongly agree." There are two questions that were effective the most, including "My friend sent me a video of pet influencers" and "I saw my circle share the video of pet influencers on their social media platforms," with a mean score equal to 4.23 followed by "I like to talk about funny videos of pet influencers with my friends on my social media" (mean = 4.21), "I like to share the video of pet influencers that I like on my personal social media account" (mean = 4.18), and "I like to share positive comment on the cute video of pet influencer" (mean = 3.93), respectively.

4.7.3 Differences between Groups on E-WOM

4.7.3.1 ANOVA Test (Difference between two or more groups)

For Electronic Word of Mouth (E-WOM), there are significant

differences among the respondents' group, which is average monthly income.

• Average Monthly Income (ANOVA)

Depen <mark>de</mark> nt Variable	(I) Average monthly income.	(J) Average monthly income.	Mean Difference (I-J)	Std. Error	Sig.
I like to talk about funny	30,001-50,000 THB	10,000-30,000 THB	503*	.129	.001
videos of pet influencers with	S FIF	50,001-70,000 THB	790*	.194	.001
my friends on my social media	50,001-70,000 THB	Less than 10,000 THB	.621*	.206	.028

Table 4.30 Average Monthly Income - ANOVA

According to the survey results, respondents with a monthly income of 10,000 THB to 30,000 THB and 50,001 to 70,000 THB said that they like to talk more about funny videos of pet influencers with their friends on social media as compared to those who earn 30,001 to 50,000 THB average monthly income.

In addition, the research results indicate that respondents with an average monthly income of 50,001 to 70,000 THB have a higher tendency to talk more about funny videos of pet influencers with their friends on social media, such as Facebook, Twitter, and Instagram, than those who earn less than 10,000 THB.

4.8 Trust

4.8.1 Reliability Test

Table 4.31	Trust -	Reliability	Statistics
-------------------	---------	-------------	-------------------

Reliability Statistics					
Cronbach's Alpha Cronbach's Alpha Based on Standardized Items N of Item					
.899	.898	6			

The Cronbach's alpha is 0.899, indicating high reliability and consistency of trust questions surpassing the threshold of 0.7.

4.8.2 Descriptive Analysis

Table 4.32 Trust - Descriptive Statistics

(N = 213)

Trust	Mean	Std. Deviation
If I trust a pet influencer, I want to repurchase the same brand of	3.92	.821
electronic home appliance presented by them again.	=//	
I think that pet influencers have morals.	3.96	.879
I think that pet influencers have a high reputation.	4.16	.742
I trust pet influencers.	3.99	.844
I think pet influencers care about their audiences.	4.11	.805
I think pet influencers provide good advice.	4.06	.805

According to a descriptive statistics result, trust when using pet influencers marketing is determined by six attributes. The survey asked respondents to rate their level of agreement on a scale of 1-5, where 1 means "strongly disagree" and 5 means "strongly agree." The most effective question was, "I think that pet influencers have a high reputation," which had a mean score of 4.16. The second most effective question was, "I think pet influencers care about their audiences," with a mean score of 4.11. Other attributes that were rated highly include "I think pet influencers provide good

advice," with a mean score of 4.06, "I trust pet influencers," with a mean score of 3.99, "I think that pet influencers have morals," with a mean score of 3.96, and "If I trust a pet influencer, I want to repurchase the same brand of electronic home appliance presented by them again" with a mean score of 3.92.

4.8.3 Differences between Groups on Trust

4.8.3.1 ANOVA Test (Difference between two or more groups)

For Trust, there are significant differences among the respondents'

group, including age range, level of education, employment status, and average monthly income.

• Age Range (ANOVA)

Dependent Variable	(I) Age range (years old)	(J) Age range (years old)	Mean Difference (I-J)	Std. Error	Sig.
If I trust a pet influencer, I want to repurchase	45 - 54	25-34	.559*	.206	.043
the same brand of electronic home appliance					
presented by them again.			_//		
I think pet influencers care about their	18-24	<mark>45 - 5</mark> 4	673*	.217	.013
audiences.					

Table 4.33 Age Range - ANOVA

The survey results suggest that people aged 45-54 years old are more likely to repurchase a particular brand of electronic home appliance if they trust a pet influencer who presented it. This is in comparison to the age range of 25-34 years old (Sig. = 0.043). Moreover, the research indicates that people aged 45-54 years old consider pet influencers to care about their audiences more than those aged 18-24 years old (Sig. = 0.013). • Level of Education (ANOVA)

Dependent Variable	(I) Your highest level of education.	(J) Your highest level of education.	Mean Difference (I-J)	Std. Error	Sig.
I think that pet influencers have	High School or	Bachelor's degree	.725*	.233	.006
morals.	equivalent	or equivalent			
I trust pet influencers.	High School or	Bachelor's degree	.612*	.225	.022
	equivalent	or equivalent			

Table 4.34 Level of Education - ANOVA

The survey results suggest that people with high school or equivalent are more likely to think that pet influencers have morals, and trust pet influencers more than people with a bachelor's degree or equivalent (Sig.0.006 and 0.022).

• Employment Status (ANOVA)

Table 4.35Employment - ANOVA

Dependent Variable	(I) Employment Status	(J) Employment Status	Mean Difference (I-J)	Std. Error	Sig.
I think pet influencers care about their audiences.	Businessman	Full-time student	.596*	.198	.044

Businessmen are likely to think that pet influencers care about their audiences more than full-time students with Sig. equal to 0.44.

• Average Monthly Income (ANOVA)

Table 4.36 Average Monthly Income - ANOVA

Dependent Variable	(I) Average monthly income.	(J) Average monthly income.	Mean Difference (I-J)	Std. Error	Sig.
I think pet influencers care	Less than 10,000 THB	50,000-70,000 THB	707*	.220	.015
about their audiences.		Over 70,000 THB	669*	.232	.044

People with an average income of 50,001 THB to 70,000 THB

and over 70,000 THB tend to think that pet influencers care about their audiences more than people with an average monthly income of less than 10,000 THB.

4.9 Repurchase Intention

4.9.1 Reliability Test

Table 4.37 Repurchase Intention - Reliability Statistics

Reliability Statistics					
Cronbach's Alpha Cronbach's Alpha Based on Standardized Items N of Item					
.952	.952	6			

The Cronbach's alpha is 0.952, indicating high reliability and consistency of repurchase intention questions surpassing the threshold of 0.7.

4.9.2 Descriptive Analysis

Table 4.38 Repurchase Intention - Descriptive Statistics

(N = 213)

Repurchase Intention	Mean	Std. Deviation
I plan to buy the electronic home appliances that I saw in the pet	3.75	.879
influencer video in the next purchase.		
I am willing to repurchase electronic home appliances that are	3.78	.887
recommended by pet influencers.		
I am considering repurchasing electronic home appliances after	3.81	.866
watching pet influencers' videos presenting the product.		
I will buy the electronic home appliance that was recommended by	3.73	.884
the pet influencer again.		
I am likely to repurchase electronic home appliance products	3.74	.914
promoten by pet influencers.		
I will definitely repurchase electronic home appliance products	3.69	.935
presented by pet influencers.		

A descriptive statistics show the mean values of the repurchase intention effectiveness, six key attributes determine a consumer's intent to repurchase a product. Participants were asked to rate their level of agreement on a 5-point scale ranging from "strongly disagree" to "strongly agree." The attribute with the highest mean score was "I am considering repurchasing electronic home appliance products after watching pet influencers' videos presenting the product," rated at 3.81. The second most effective question was "I am willing to repurchase electronic home appliances that are recommended by pet influencers," which scored a mean of 3.78. Other highly rated attributes include "I plan to buy the electronic home appliances that I saw in the pet influencers video in the next purchase," with a mean score of 3.75, "I am likely to repurchase electronic home appliance products promoted by pet influencers," with a mean score of 3.74, "I will buy the electronic home appliance that was recommended by the pet influencer again," with a mean score of 3.73, and "I will definitely repurchase electronic home appliance products products products products promoted by the pet influencer again," with a mean score of 3.76.

4.9.3 Differences between Groups on Repurchase Intention

4.9.3.1 Anova Test (Difference between two or more groups)

There are significant differences in repurchase intention based on age range, level of education, and average monthly income.

• Age Range (ANOVA)

Dependent Variable	(I) Age range (years old)	(J) Age range (years old)	Mean Difference (I-J)	Std. Error	Sig.
I plan to buy the electronic home appliances that I saw in the pet influencer video in the next purchase.	45 - 54	35 - 44	.771*	.257	.018
I will buy the electronic home appliance that was recommended by the pet influencer again.	45 - 54	35 - 44	.715*	.259	.037

Table 4.39 Age Range - ANOVA

The ANOVA results show that people aged 45-54 years old are more likely to have a plan to buy the electronic home appliances that they saw in the pet influencer video in the next purchase. This is in comparison to the age range of 35-44 years old (Sig. = 0.018). Moreover, the research indicates that people aged 45-54 years will buy the electronic home appliance that was recommended by the pet influencer again more than those aged 35-44 years old (Sig. = 0.037).

• Level of Education (ANOVA)

Dependent Variable	(I) Your highest level of education.	(J) Your highest level of education.	Mean Difference (I-J)	Std. Error	Sig.
I am willing to repurchase electronic home appliances that are recommended by pet influencers.	High School or equivalent	Bachelor's degree or equivalent	.623*	.237	.028
I am considering repurchasing electronic home appliances after watching pet influencers' videos presenting the product.	High School or equivalent	Bachelor's degree or equivalent	.616*	.231	.025

Table 4.40 Level of Education - ANOVA

The survey results suggest that people with high school or equivalent are more willing to repurchase electronic home appliances that are recommended by pet influencers, and they are more likely to consider repurchasing electronic home appliances after watching pet influencers' videos presenting the product more than people with a bachelor's degree or equivalent at the mean difference is significant at the 0.028 and 0.025 level, respectively or below 0.05. • Average Monthly Income (ANOVA)

Dependent Variable	(I) Average monthly income.	(J) Average monthly income.	Mean Difference (I-J)	Std. Error	Sig.
I plan to buy the electronic home	30,001-50,000 THB	50,001-70,000 THB	740*	.227	.013
appliances that I saw in the pet					
influencer video in the next purchase.					
I am willing to repurchase electronic	30,001-50,000 THB	50,001-70,000 THB	720*	.230	.020
home appliances that are	0.0				
recommended by pet influencers.	, , , ,	×			
I am considering repurchasing	30,001-50,000 THB	50,001-70,000 THB	840*	.223	.002
electronic home appliances after					
watching pet influencers' videos					
presenting the product.	- 444				
I will buy the electronic home	30,001-50,000 THB	50,001-70,000 THB	760*	.230	.011
appliance that was recommended	1		>1		
by the pet influencer again.					
I am likely to repurchase electronic	30,001-50,000 THB	50,001-70,000 THB	790*	.237	.010
home appliance products promote					
by pet influencers.					
I will definitely repurchase electronic	30,001-50,000 THB	50,001-70,000 THB	820*	.242	.009
home appliance products		1.18/			
presented by pet influencers.	18181				

 Table 4.41
 Average Monthly Income - ANOVA

People with an average income of 50,001 THB to 70,000 THB tend to plan to buy electronic home appliances that they saw in the pet influencer video in the next purchase, willing to repurchase electronic home appliances that are recommended by pet influencers, considering repurchasing electronic home appliances after watching pet influencers' videos presenting the product, buy the electronic home appliance that was recommended by the pet influencer again, repurchase electronic home appliance products promoten by pet influencers, and likely to definitely repurchase electronic home appliance that 30,001 THB to 50,000 THB average income.

4.10 Regression Analysis

	ANOVA ^a						
	Model	Sum of Squares	df	Mean Square	F	Sig.	
1	Regression	105.712	6	17.619	116.908	.000 ^b	
	Residual	31.045	206	.151			
	Total	136.757	212				
a. Dependent Variable: Repurchase_Intention_Mean							
b. Predictors: (Constant), Trust_Mean, AttitudeTowardPetInfluencers_Mean, EWOM_Mean,							
Pet_Celebrity_Mean, Brand_Image_Mean, Content_Quality_Mean							

Table 4.42ANOVA - Regression

The regression model is useable or acceptable since Sig. value in ANOVA table is below 0.05 at 0.000.

Table 4.43	Model Summ	nary - Regression
-------------------	------------	-------------------

Model Summary					
Model R R Square Adjusted R Square Std. Error of the Estimation					
1	.879 ^a	.773	.766	.38821	
a. Predictors: (Constant), Trust_Mean, AttitudeTowardPetInfluencers_Mean, EWOM_Mean,					
Pet_Celebrity_Mean, Brand_Image_Mean, Content_Quality_Mean					

The R square value indicates that 77.3% of the variability in the dependent variable can be explained by the independent variables.

Model		Unstandardized		Standardized				
		Coefficients		Coefficients	t	Sig.		
		В	Std.	Beta	Ľ	019		
		Б	Error	Deta				
1	(Constant)	085	.241		351	.726		
	Content_Quality_Mean	.226	.096	.165	2.350	.020		
	AttitudeTowardPetInfluencers_Mean	390	.081	242	-4.810	.000		
	Pet_Celebrity_Endorsement_Mean	.435	.076	.355	5.711	.000		
	Brand_Image_Mean	.412	.080	.346	5.125	.000		
	EWOM_Mean	.117	.063	.093	1.858	.065		
	Trust_Mean	.194	.074	.161	2.618	.009		
a.	a. Dependent Variable: Repurchase_Intention_Mean							

Table 4.44Coefficients - Regression

There are five significant values lower than 0.05, indicating an effect on repurchase intention (dependent variable), consisting of content quality (Sig. = 0.020), attitude toward pet influencers (Sig. = 0.000), pet celebrity endorsement (Sig. = 0.000), brand image (Sig. = 0.000), and trust (Sig. = 0.009).

The independent variables that have the highest effect on repurchase intention (dependent variable) on electronic home appliances are pet celebrity endorsement (Beta = 0.355), followed by brand image (Bata = 0.346), attitude toward pet influencers (Beta = -0.242), content quality (Beta = 0.165), and trust (Beta = 0.161). However, attitudes toward pet influencers show a negative beta, which means that those with more positive attitudes toward pet influencers are less likely to repurchase.

CHAPTER V DISCUSSION

5.1 Relationship

5.1.1 Content Quality

According to the study, the quality of content plays a significant role in the repurchase intention. The findings of a previous study conducted by Chen & Chang (2018) also confirmed that the quality of information has a positive impact on customer repurchase intention. Similarly, Wandoko & Panggati's study (2022b) found that the quality of content has a positive effect on repurchase intention. The research conducted by Wang et al. (2012) also suggests that higher content quality leads to higher repurchase intention, which aligns with the results of this study. Moreover, the study's findings are consistent with Shim & Jo's research (2020), which found that content quality has a positive influence on repurchase intention and aligns with the result of this study. According to the study conducted by Rahi and Ghani (2018), there is a significant positive correlation between content quality and repurchase intention, which is consistent with the findings of this study. Furthermore, Gunawan et al. (2023) also discovered that there is a positive impact between content quality and repurchase intention, which aligns with the results of this research.

5.1.2 Attitude toward pet influencers

The study found that people's attitude toward pet influencers has a significant impact on their intention to repurchase. Previous studies by Conner et al. (2006), Fishbein and Ajzen (1975), Ünal et al. (2019), and Hussain et al. (2023) have all shown a positive correlation between attitude and repurchase intention. Similarly, Loh and Hassan's (2021) study found that a positive attitude towards food truck products leads to a stronger intention to repurchase, but the finding of this study shows that attitude toward pet influencers negatively affects the intention to repurchase, while other previous

research shows positively influence effect over repurchase intention. This research has shown that customers with a more positive attitude toward pet influencers are less likely to repurchase, while those with a less positive attitude toward pet influencers are more likely to have higher repurchase intentions. Interestingly, customers do not typically associate the quality of electronic home appliances with pet influencers.

5.1.3 Pet Celebrity Endorsement

The study's findings suggest that there is a positive correlation between pet celebrity endorsement and the intention to repurchase. In other words, when a pet celebrity promotes a product, it increases the likelihood of a customer purchasing the same product again. This conclusion aligns with the results of previous studies conducted by Laila and Sjabadhyni (2017), Chiquita et al. (2021), Prapanca (2023), Domfeh et al. (2018), Ponggeng & Mulia (2020), and Widyasari and Suparna (2022). Additionally, a study conducted by Zarkasi et al. (2023) found that pet celebrity endorsement has a positive impact on the intention to repurchase.

5.1.4 Brand Image

The results of this study indicate that a positive brand image leads to an increased intention to repurchase. These findings are consistent with past studies proceeded by Pratisthita et al. (2022), Huang et al. (2019), Yasa (2018), Winarto and Widyastuti (2021), Lianto (2019), Suryana and Dasuki (2013), Tariq et al. (2013), and Wu et al. (2011). Additionally, a prior study by Wijaya and Astuti (2018) also demonstrates a positive correlation between brand image and repurchase intention, which is in line with the results of this research.

5.1.5 Electronic Word of Mouth (E-WOM)

The outcome of the research reveals that there is no significant effect between electronic word of mouth (E-WOM) and repurchase intention. This means that the spread of information about a product or service through electronic means, such as social media, online reviews, and discussion forums, does not have a noticeable impact on whether customers will return to buy again. This finding is different from the results of previous studies conducted by Kuswardi and Sanny (2023), Tandon et al. (2020), Wandoko and Panggati (2022), Matute et al. (2016), Wei, Miao, and Huang (2013), and Zhang et al. (2021). These studies suggested that there is a positive association between E-WOM and repurchase intention. Furthermore, the research conducted by Williams and Soutar (2009) found that sharing E-WOM can increase repurchase intention. However, this contradicts the results of this study.

5.1.6 Trust

The research findings indicate that trust has a significant and positive impact on repurchase intention for the same product from the same brand for future purchases. This conclusion was conducted based on the analysis of various factors that influence repurchase intention. The study builds on previous research conducted by Flavian et al. (2006), Wandoko and Panggati (2022), Şehirli (2023), and Punyatoya (2019), which also found that there is a positive effect between repurchase intention and trust. Furthermore, this study highlights the importance of trust in influencing repurchase intention. The results of this study are consistent with the previous research by Trivedi and Yadav (2019), which found that trust is a crucial factor that positively affects repurchase intention, which is different from the result of this study.

5.1.7 Repurchase Intention

The study found that several factors have a strong impact on repurchase intention, including content quality, attitude toward pet influencers, pet celebrity endorsement, brand image, and trust. However, electronic word of mouth (E-WOM) did not have a significant effect on repurchase intention. Previous research by Trivedi and Yadav (2019) supported the importance of trust in positively affecting repurchase intention. Similarly, Chen and Tsai's study (2007) found that content quality had a positive impact on the intention to repurchase goods or services, which aligns with the findings of this study. Santi and Suasana's research (2021) showed that electronic word of mouth and brand image had a positive and significant influence on repurchase intention. Widyasari and Suparna's study (2022) also found that the influence of celebrity endorsement and brand image had a positive effect on repurchase intention.

5.2 Conclusion

This study aims to identify the most significant factor that leads to repurchase intention in electronic home appliances through pet influencer marketing. Additionally, the study examines the impact of various factors, including content quality, attitude towards pet influencers, pet celebrity endorsement, brand image, electronic word of mouth (E-WOM), and trust, on repurchase intention in electronic home appliances.

The present study conducted research on the factors that significantly influence customers' intention to repurchase electronic home appliances. The results indicate that pet celebrity endorsement, brand image, attitude toward pet influencers, content quality, and trust all have a significant impact on repurchase intention. This means that people may purchase electric home appliances repeatedly due to pet celebrity endorsements, brand image, content quality of pet influencers, and trust in pet influencers.

Notable, only the attitude toward pet influencers has a negative impact on the intention to repurchase. All the other variables have a positive effect on repurchase intentions. Studies have suggested that customers who have a more positive view of pet influencers are less likely to repurchase, whereas those with a less favorable opinion of them are more likely to have higher repurchase intentions. Interestingly, customers usually don't link the quality of electronic home appliances with pet influencers.

Furthermore, the study showed that electronic word-of-mouth (E-WOM) has no significant impact on repurchase intention in electronic home appliances.

One of the main objectives of this study is to closely analyze and examine the variations between different groups based on five essential demographic elements, namely gender, age range, education level, monthly income, and occupation, through the use of scale questions. The study intends to delve deeper into the variations between each group on these variables to gain a better understanding of how each demographic element impacts the outcome of the scale questions. By analyzing these differences, the study aims to provide valuable insights into how demographic factors play a crucial role in finding the results of scale questions.

The analysis of the survey data revealed that female respondents had a significantly more positive attitude towards pet influencers compared to their male respondents.

There is a noticeable difference in how different age groups view pet influencers. People who are between 25-34 years old and 45-54 years old generally have a better attitude towards pet influencers than those who are 18-24 years old. Respondents in the 18-24 age group are more influenced by pet celebrity endorsements than those aged 35-44. Those aged 45-54 place brand image more importance than those aged 35-44. Additionally, respondents in the 45-54 age group tend to trust pet influencers more than those in the 18-24 and 25-34 age groups. Those in the 45-54 age group are more likely to repurchase electronic home appliances than those aged 35-44.

The level of education of the respondents plays a significant role in determining the importance they give to content quality. Those with a high school education or equivalent like the content quality of pet influencers more than those with a bachelor's degree or equivalent. On the other hand, respondents with high school or equivalent education levels tend to value the brand image endorsed by pet influencers more than those with a bachelor's degree or equivalent. Additionally, those with a high school education or equivalent trust pet influencers more and have a higher intention to repurchase as compared to those with a bachelor's degree or equivalent. This could be because they are more likely to be influenced in their repurchasing decisions by the opinions and recommendations of pet influencers.

The study examined the relationship between respondents' average monthly income and their attitudes towards pet influencers. The findings suggest that respondents who earn a monthly income of 30,001 THB – 50,000 THB are more likely to appreciate the quality of content produced by pet influencers than those who earn 10,000 THB – 30,000 THB, 50,001 THB – 70,000 THB, and over 70,000 THB per month. This implies that people who earn a moderate income are more likely to enjoy the content produced by pet influencers than those.

Furthermore, respondents who earn 50,001 THB - 70,000 THB per month are more satisfied with the quality of content produced by pet influencers than those who earn less than 10,000 THB per month. This suggests that people who earn a higher income are more discerning when it comes to the quality of content produced by pet influencers.

The study also found that respondents who earn between 10,000 THB – 30,000 THB and 50,001 THB – 70,000 THB per month have a more positive attitude

towards pet influencers than those who earn less than 10,000 THB per month. This suggests that people who earn a moderate to high income are more likely to appreciate the work of pet influencers and see them as a positive influence.

The study revealed that respondents who earn 50,001 THB - 70,000 THBper month are more likely to be influenced by pet celebrity endorsements than those who earn 30,001 THB – 50,000 THB per month. This implies that people who earn a higher income are more likely to be influenced by celebrity endorsements. According to the study, respondents with an average monthly income of 50,001 THB to 70,000 THB tend to place more importance on brand image as compared to those with lower incomes (less than 10,000 THB, 10,000 THB - 30,000 THB, and 30,001 THB - 50,000 THB). This indicates that individuals with higher incomes may be more brand-conscious and may have a good brand image of products presented by pet influencers. People with high incomes may be willing to pay more for premium products and services that have a good reputation. Moreover, they have a good brand image on products that are presented by pet influencers. In terms of electronic word-of-mouth (E-WOM), respondents who earn 50,001 THB to 70,000 THB on average monthly income are more likely to generate E-WOM as compared to those who earn 30,001 THB to 50,000 THB and less than 10,000 THB. However, those with an average monthly income of 10,000 THB to 30,000 THB are also likely to generate E-WOM as compared to those who earn 30,001 THB to 50,000 THB. This suggests that E-WOM is not only driven by income but also by other factors such as product satisfaction, engagement, and customer experience. Furthermore, respondents who earn 50,001 THB to 70,000 THB and over 70,000 THB on average monthly income tend to trust pet influencers more than those who earn less than 10,000 THB. This indicates that individuals with higher incomes are more likely to follow pet influencers and may be more willing to repurchase products or services recommended by them. Those who earn 50,001 THB to 70,000 THB on average monthly income are more likely to have a repurchase intention than those who have 30,001 THB to 50,000 THB average monthly income. This suggests that individuals with higher incomes are may be more likely to make repeat purchases.

Among the respondents, those who identified themselves as businesspeople have shown a higher degree of trust towards pet influencers compared to respondents who are full-time students. This implies that pet influencers have a greater impact on the repurchasing intention of businesspeople as compared to students.

Overall, high school or an equivalent level of education think that the electric home appliance brand image is good, trust pet influencers, and are satisfied with the content quality of pet influencers. Respondents aged 45-54 have a better view of brand image, trust pet influencers, and have a positive attitude toward pet influencers than other age groups.

5.3 Recommendations

The following section presents recommendations for electronic home appliance product owner on how to use pet influencer marketing to promote their products. The product should be a pet-related product such as a vacuum machine and air filter.

By increasing repurchase intention on electronic home appliances, it is better to prioritize pet celebrity endorsement because it has a direct and most influential effect on repurchase intention. It is better to focus on pet celebrity endorsement by using their reputation and credibility to endorse the product. Collaborating with popular pets that have a considerable following on social media platforms such as Facebook, Instagram, X, or TikTok can help create a positive buzz around the product and significantly expand the audience. For instance, if the company sells air conditioners for homes, partnering with a renowned cat or dog influencer that frequently posts photos or videos of themselves enjoying the cool air in air-conditioned rooms could be a strategic move. To execute this strategy, the product owner can reach out to pet celebrities or their owners through social media channels or influencer marketing agencies. In exchange for featuring products in their posts or stories, the company can offer them free products, discounts, or payment. With the right approach, the company can utilize the influence of pet influencers to enhance repurchase intention and achieve their marketing goals. In the context of pet celebrity endorsement, if there is no perceived detriment to the welfare of animals, the practice could be deemed appropriate. It is important to ensure that the welfare of pets is not compromised in any manner. Therefore, a thorough evaluation of the impact of celebrity endorsement on pets should be conducted before instituting such practices.

The second factor that has a positive repurchase intention effect on the electronic home appliance is a brand image because they tend to think that the electronic home appliance brand that pet influencers advertise is nice. To leverage this effect, electronic home appliance product owners could engage popular pet influencers to promote their electronic home appliance brand, thereby building a positive brand image and increasing the likelihood of repurchasing. For example, the company reached out to Doug the Pug's owner via Instagram, proposing to send them a complimentary smart air purifier in exchange for featuring the product in Doug's posts and stories. Doug's owner accepted the offer and soon received the product. Later, they shared a series of delightful photos and videos of Doug basking in the purified air of different rooms in their home. The captions on these posts emphasized the advantages of having a smart air purifier at home. Additionally, Doug's owner provided a special discount code for the product, which was well-received by their followers. Doug's fans loved the charming photos of him and the effectiveness of the purifier. The company also received glowing customer reviews and testimonials featuring pets happily using the product, which they incorporated into their marketing efforts. This approach could prove to be a valuable strategy for electronic home appliance product owners seeking to enhance repurchase intention.

The third factor that has a significant impact on electronic home appliance repurchase intention is the attitude toward pet influencers. The finding shows that customers who hold a positive perception of pet influencers are less inclined to repurchase intention. Customers do not typically associate electronic home appliance quality with pet influencers. Therefore, electronic home appliance product owner may reduce the association with the quality and performance of their electronic home appliances and raise awareness instead.

The fourth factor that positively influences repurchase intention on electronic home appliances is content quality because people tend to like to watch pet influencers introduce electronic home appliances. The recommendation is to collaborate with pet influencers to improve the overall content quality to showcase electronic home appliances to attract viewers and increase the likelihood of customer repurchase intention. When choosing pet influencers to collaborate with, electronic home appliance product owners should consider the following factors to ensure that the content quality aligns with their brand image and messaging. The company can conduct thorough research to identify pet influencers who create high-quality content that aligns with the brand's messaging and values. Look for influencers who have a significant following and high engagement rate. The company can offer training, support, and resources to the pet influencer to ensure that they are knowledgeable about the product and can provide accurate information to their followers. Regularly monitor the content created by the pet influencer to ensure that it aligns with the brand's messaging and values. Provide feedback and guidance to the influencer as needed to ensure that the content is accurate and effective and leverage customer feedback and testimonials featuring pets using the product to reinforce the influencer's content. Share this information with the influencer and encourage them to incorporate it into their posts and stories. By following these recommendations, electronic home appliance product owners can effectively utilize pet influencers who have quality information in their content.

The last crucial factor that impacts electronic home appliance repurchase intention is trust. People tend to think that pet influencers have a high reputation, care about their audience, and provide good advice, which can help build trust and credibility for the product. Trust can be established through various means, such as transparent communication and building a reliable product perspective. Utilizing customer reviews and testimonials featuring pets enjoying the product can help the product owner build trust and reliability with potential customers. Pet influencer marketing can be a powerful tool for achieving marketing objectives by showcasing how pets benefit from the product. Encouraging pet influencers to honestly and transparently review the product can enhance their trust factor with followers. Additionally, leveraging customer reviews and testimonials that demonstrate the product's effectiveness can create a sense of reliability and trust with potential customers. By utilizing pet influencer marketing, the company can create an emotional connection with their target audience and boost their marketing efforts. Therefore, building trust can help businesses increase repurchase intention

Furthermore, the business and electronic home appliance product owners can increase focus more on targeted people with high incomes between 50,001 THB and 70,000 THB, as a result showed that respondents with this income range tend to have a significant effect on repurchase intention. The reason might be because they have high purchasing power.

Based on the research findings, it appears that individuals with a high school diploma are more likely to have a higher intention to repurchase an electronic home appliance than those with a bachelor's degree. Therefore, electronic home appliance product owners may consider using pet influencer marketing to target individuals with a high school or equivalent level of education.

Research shows that people between the ages of 45 and 54 have a higher tendency to repurchase electric home appliances when influenced by pet influencers as compared to other age groups. Therefore, electronic home appliance product owners should increase focus on applying pet influencer marketing to target the 45-54 age group for better results.



5.4 Limitations

The research collected data from Thai people residing in Bangkok and the Metropolitan Region, including Nakhon Pathom, Nonthaburi, Pathum Thani, Samut Prakan, and Samut Sakhon, who have watched videos of pet influencers in the past six months. The researchers used the convenience sampling method to gather data, which had some limitations. The sample size was small, with only 213 respondents, so the research results may not fully represent the population's opinions. Moreover, there was no clear division of the sample according to areas in Bangkok, and the sample group of respondents may be concentrated. The data collection period lasted only 23 days, from 14 October 2013 to 5 November 2023, which may not provide a long-term perspective on the marketing trend to be considered for application over time.

5.5 Future Research Directions

To obtain more detailed information about needs and opinions, future research should consider collecting data through qualitative research methods such as interviews or case studies. The current research discovered that some respondents expressed lower repurchase intentions towards electronic home appliances when exposed to pet influencer marketing when they had a positive attitude toward pet influencers. However, the study did not explore the exact reasons behind these opinions. Conducting in-depth or qualitative research will enable businesses to gain a better understanding of the reasons behind these opinions and develop effective pet influencer marketing strategies to communicate with consumers more effectively.

It is important to collect more specific details about the areas in Bangkok for data collection, as there are variations in income range and educational levels in different areas. This will provide a better understanding of the target customer background. Additionally, future research should consider extending the data collection period to study the changes in people's perception about pet influencers over time and collect more samples to represent the population's opinion more accurately.

REFERENCES

- Amos, C., Holmes, G., & Strutton, D. (2008). Exploring the relationship between celebrity endorser effects and advertising effectiveness. A quantitativesynthesis of effect size. *International Journal of Advertising*, 27(2), 209-234. https://doi.org/10. 1080/02650487.2008.11073052
- Babić, A., Sotgiu, F., Valck, K. De and Bijmolt, T.H.A. (2015). The Effect of Electronic
 Word of Mouth on Sales : A Meta-Analytic Review of Platform, Product, and Metric Factors. *American Marketing Association*, 53(3), 297-318. https://doi.org/10.31686/ijier.vol9.iss8.3309
- Bekk, M., & Spörle, M. (2010). The Influence of Perceived Personality Characteristics on Positive Attitude Towards and Suitability of a Celebrity as a Marketing Campaign Endorser. *The Open Psychology Journal*, *3*, 54-66. https://doi.org/ 10.2174/1874350101003010054
- Berzleja, Z., & Kertész, F. (2019). *The furry side of Instagram: A study about dog influencers on Instagram*. Dissertation, Malmö universitet.
- Bian, Q., & Forsythe, S. (2012). Purchase intention for luxury brands: A cross cultural comparison. *Journal of Business Research*, 65(10), 1443-1451.
- Cahya, A. D., & Jannah, N. (2022). Analisis Strategi Pemasaran Meningkatkan Jumlah Nasabah Pada Produk Deposito iB Ibadah di PT Bank Sumut Syariah KCPSy HM Yamin. JIKEM: Jurnal Ilmu Komputer, Ekonomi dan Manajemen, 2(1), 1311-1324.
- Campbell, C., & Farrell, J. R. (2020). More than meets the eye: The functional components underlying influencer marketing. *Business horizons*, 63(4), 469-479.
- Chen, C. C., & Chang, Y. C. (2018). What drives purchase intention on Airbnb? Perspectives of consumer reviews, information quality, and media richness. *Telematics and Informatics*, 35(5), 1512–1523. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.tele.2018.03.019
- Chen, C., & Tsai, D. C. (2007). How destination image and evaluative factors affect behavioral intentions? *Tourism Management*, 28(4), 1115–1122. https://doi.org/ 10.1016/j.tourman.2006.07.007

REFERENCES (Cont.)

- Chetioui, Y., Benlafqih, H., & Lebdaoui, H. (2020). How fashion influencers contribute to consumers' purchase intention. *Journal of Fashion Marketing and Management*, 24(3), 361-380. https://doi.org/10.1108/JFMM-08-2019-0157
- Chiquita, M., Noor, Y. L., & Farit, A. (2021). The effect of celebrity endorser on repurchase intention of cosmetic products in millennial generation. *AJHSSR*, *1*(1), 1.
- Cho, E.H., & Han, J.S. (2018). The effect of video user created content tourism information quality on user's satisfaction, visit intention and information sharing intention. *Korean J. Hosp. Tour.*, 27, 163–179.
- Cho, T., Choi, H., Yang, S., & Zhang, H. (2023). User Satisfaction Study for Sustainability of YouTube Content Quality: Focusing on Ski Technology. *Businesses*, 3(1), 114-128.
- Conner, M., Sandberg, T., McMillan, B., & Higgins, A. (2006). Role of anticipated regret, intentions, and intention stability in adolescent smoking initiation. *British Journal of Health Psychology*, *11*(1), 85-101.
- DeLone, W. H., & McLean, E. R. (2003). The DeLone and McLean model of information systems success: a ten-year update. *Journal of management information systems*, *19*(4), 9-30.
- Domfeh, H. A., Kusi, L. Y., Nyarku, K. M., & Ofori, H. (2018). The mediating effect of customer satisfaction in the predictive relation between celebrity advertising and purchase intentions in telecom industry in Ghana: University Students' Perspective. *International Journal of Business and Management Invention*, 7(3), 40-54.
- Esteireiro, A. S., Morais, V., Henriques, C. J., Ferreira, S. C., & Nobre, M. C. L. (2020). Parents Parents Knowledge and Attitudes Towards the use of Antibiotics in Patients within the Paediatric age Range. *Pediatric Oncall*, 17(2), 44-53. https://doi.org/10.7199/ped.oncall.2020.20

REFERENCES (Cont.)

- Firmansyah, N., & Ali, H. (2019). Consumer Trust Model : The Impact of Satisfaction and E-Service Quality toward Repurchase Intention in E-Commerce. Saudi Journal of Humanities and Social Sciences, 4(8), 552–559. https://doi.org/10.21276/ sjhss.2019.4.8.4
- Fishbein, M., & Ajzen, I.(1975). *Belief, Attitude, Intention, and Behaviour: An Introduction* to Theory and Research. Reading, MA: Addison-Wesley.
- Flavian, C., Guinaliu, M. and Gurrea, R. (2006). The role played by perceived usability, satisfaction and consumer trust on website loyalty. *Information and Management*, 43(1), 1-14.
- Fleck, N., Korchia, M., & Le Roy, I. (2012). Celebrities in Advertising: Looking for Congruence or Likability? *Psychology & Marketing*, 29(9), 651-662.
- Garg, P., & Joshi, R. (2018). Purchase intention of "Halal" brands in India: the mediating effect of attitude. Journal of Islamic Marketing, 9(3), 683-694.
- Gunawan, A., Jasfar, F., Hady, H., & Arafah, W. (2023). The Influence of Customer Experience, Information Quality, and Service Innovation on Trust that Mediated by Repurchase Intentions on Conventional Taxis in Jakarta. *Journal of Economics, Finance and Management Studies, 6*(1), 85-96. https://doi.org/ 10.5281/zenodo.7514784
- Hang, Y., & Jeong, S.-H. (2018). Editorial Content In Native Advertising How Do Brand Placement and Content QualityAffect Native-Advertising Effectiveness? *Journal* of Advertising Research, 59, 208-218. https://doi.org/10.2501/Jar-2018-019
- Hardilawati, W. L., Binangkit, I. D., & Perdana, R. (2019). Endorsement: Media Pemasaran Masa Kini. *Jurnal Ilmiah Manajemen Universitas Putera Batam*, 7(1), 88-98.
- Harrigan, P., Evers, U., Miles, M., & Daly, T. (2018). Customer engagement and the relationship between involvement, engagement, self-brand connection and brand usage intent. *Journal of Business Research*, 88, 388–396. https://doi.org/ 10.1016/j.jbusres.2017.11.046
- Hartama, E. (2021). Possibilities of influencer marketing through pet Instagram accounts: A fast lane to a pet owner's pocket? LUT School of Business and Management. Retrieved from https://lutpub.lut.fi/bitstream/handle/10024/163069/ julkaisuvalmiskandi_emmihartama.pdf?sequence=1&isAllowed=y
- Hellier, P. K., Geursen, G. M., Carr, R. & Rickrd. J. A. (2003). Customer Repurchase Intention: A General Structural Equation Model. *European Journal of Marketing* 37(11/12), 1762–800.
- Herjanto, H., Adiwijaya, M., & Semuel, H. (2020). The Effect of Celebrity Endorsement on Instagram Fashion Purchase Intention: The Evidence from Indonesia. *Vilnius University Press*, 11(1), 203-221. https://doi.org/10.15388/omee.2020.11.31
- Hollebeek, L., Glynn, M., & Brodie, R. (2014). Consumer brand engagement in social media: Conceptualization, scale development and validation. *Journal of Interactive Marketing*, 28(2), 149–165. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.intmar.2013. 12.002
- Howard, M. (2020). *How can pets improve social media engagement?* Retrieved from https://nichefire.com/how-can-pets-improve-social-media-engagement/
- Huang, L.-C., Gao, M., & Hsu, P.-F. (2019). A Study on the Effect of Brand Image on Perceived Value and Repurchase Intention in Ecotourism Industry. *Ekoloji*, 28(107), 283-287.
- Huete-Alcocer, N. (2017). A Literature Review of Word of Mouth and Electronic Word of Mouth: Implications for Consumer Behavior. *Frontiers in Psychology*, 8, 1-4. doi:10.3389/fpsyg.2017.01256
- Hussain, K., Fayyaz, M. S., Shamim, A., Abbasi, A. Z., Malik, S., & Abid, M. F. (2023). Attitude, repurchase intention and brand loyalty toward halal cosmetics. *Journal of Islamic Marketing*, 1-21. https://doi.org/10.1108/jima-08-2022-0210

- Interactive Advertising Bureau. (2013). Content Marketing Primer: Definitions, Benefits, Types and Marketplace Considerations for Publishers, Marketers and Agencies. Retrieved from https://www.iab.com/wp-content/uploads/2015/07/IABContent-MarketingPrimer.pdf
- Ismagilova, E., Dwivedi, Y. K., Slade, E., et al. (2017). Electronic Word of Mouth (eWOM) in the Marketing Context: A State of the Art Analysis and Future Directions. New York City: Springer International Publishing.
- Jafri, F. I., Ancha, N., Roy, A., Ahmad, S., Riaz, H., & Hyman, C. J. (2023). TikTok and irritable bowel syndrome (IBS): a cross-sectional study of social media content quality. *Journal of Public Health*, 1-6. https://doi.org/10.1007/s10389-023-02062-5
- Journalistate. (2018). These animals make millions for their owners' bank accounts. Retrieved from https://www.journalistate.com/enter tainment/animals-makemillions
- Junyadumrongkul, O. (2022). Key success factors for people who want to start the business on e-commerce platform (shopee). Mahidol University. Retrieved from https://archive.cm.mahidol.ac.th/handle/123456789/4798
- Keller, K. L., & Swaminathan, V. (2020). Strategic Brand Management, Building, Measuring, and Managing Brand Equity (5th ed.). Pearson Education.
- Kemp, S. (2023). *Digital 2023: Thailand*. Retrieved from https://datareportal.com/reports/ digital-2023-thailand
- Kotler, P., Keller, K. L., & Chernev, A. (2021). *Marketing Management* (16th ed.). London: Pearson.
- Ku, YC., Kao, YF., Qin, M. (2019). "The Effect of Internet Celebrity's Endorsement on Consumer Purchase Intention." In Nah, F.FH., Siau, K. (eds.), *HCI in Business, Government and Organizations. eCommerce and Consumer Behavior* (pp. 274-287). Springer International Publishing. https://doi.org/10.1007/978-3-030-22335-9_18

- Kuswardi, J., & Sanny, L. (2023). E-WOM and satisfaction level's effects on massives open online course repurchase intention by generation-z. *Interdisciplinary Social Studies*, 2(10), 2451-2459. https://doi.org/10.55324/iss.v2i10.466
- Laila, R., & Sjabadhyni, B. (2017). The influence of celebrity endorsement types and congruency celebrity with the body care products on Instagram users' intention to purchase. *Advances in Social Science, Education and Humanities Research*, 139, 190–196.
- Lalaounis, S. T. (2021). Strategic Brand Management and Development, Creating and Marketing Successful Brands. London: Routledge.
- Lars Bergkvist, H. H. (2016). A new model of how celebrity endorsements work: attitude toward the endorsement as a mediator of celebrity source and endorsement effects. *International Journal of Advertising*, *35*(2), 171-184.
- Lee, S., & Kim, D. Y. (2018). The effect of hedonic and utilitarian values on satisfaction and loyalty of Airbnb users. *International Journal of Contemporary Hospitality Management*, 30(3), 1332–1351. https://doi.org/10.1108/IJCHM-09-2016-0504
- Liang, L. J., Choi, H. C., & Joppe, M. (2018). Exploring the relationship between satisfaction, trust and switching intention, repurchase intention in the context of Airbnb. *International Journal of Hospitality Management*, 69(1), 41–48. https://doi.org/ 10.1016/j. ijhm.2017.10.015
- Lianto, A. F. (2019). Pengaruh trust, perceived value, brand image dan satisfaction terhadap repurchase intention Batik Air di Jakarta dan Tangerang. *Jurnal Manajemen Bisnis Dan Kewirausahaan*, 2(4), 62-68. https://doi.org/10.24912/jmbk.v2i4.4864
- Loh, Z., & Hassan, S. H. (2021). Consumers' attitudes, perceived risks and perceived benefits towards repurchase intention of food truck products. *British Food Journal*, 124(4), 1314–1332. https://doi.org/10.1108/bfj-03-2021-0216
- Lou, C., & Yuan, S. (2019). Influencer marketing: how message value and credibility affect consumer trust of branded content on social media. *Journal of Interactive Advertising*, 19(1), 58-73.

- Maddox, J. (2021). The secret life of pet Instagram accounts: Joy, resistance, and commodification in the Internet's cute economy. *New Media & Society*, 23(11), 3332-3348. https://doi.org/10.1177/1461444820956345
- Majeed, M., Asare, C., Fatawu, A., & Abubakari, A. (2022). An analysis of the effects of customer satisfaction and engagement on social media on repurchase intention in the hospitality industry. *Cogent Business & Management*, 9(1), 1-19. https://doi.org/10.1080/23311975.2022.2028331
- Marketeer Online. (2023). *Thailand ranks* 8th, the country with the most TikTok users in the world, reaching 38 million people in 2022. Retrieved from https://marketeer online.co/archives/283552
- Matute, J., Polo-Redondo, Y., & Utrillas, A. (2016). The influence of EWOM characteristics on online repurchase intention. *Online Information Review*, 40(7), 1090-1110. https://doi.org/10.1108/oir-11-2015-0373
- Moldovan, R., & Ciornea, R. (2019). The Effect of Online Unpaid Reviews made by Renowned Vloggers: The Case of Smartphones. *Marketing from Information* to Decision Journal, 2(2), 18-34. https://doi.org/10.2478/midj-2019-0007
- Myersa, S., Senb, S., Syrdalc, H., & Woodroofd, P. (2022). The impact of Persuasion knowledge cues on social media engagement: a look at pet influencer marketing. *Journal of Marketing Theory and Practice*, 1–18. https://doi.org/10.1080/ 10696679.2022.2093224
- NGThai. (2018). *The science of cuteness*. Retrieved from https://ngthai.com/science/ 4970/the-science-of-cute-cute/
- Nguyen, A. (2022). *Adored by brands: Pet influencers*. Retrieved from https://www.upfluence. com/influencer-marketing/adored-by-brands-pet-influencers
- Ponggeng, A. Y., & Mulia, D. (2020). The Influence of Trailers, Word of Mouth (WOM), Film Quality and Movie Stars on the Interest of Watching (Repurchase Intention) National Films. *International Journal of Innovative Science and Research Technology*, 5(11), 596 - 604.

- Prapanca, D. (2023). Word of mouth and a celebrity endorsement to improve repurchase intention. *International Journal of Economics, Management, Businessand Social Science*, 3(3), 616-6223. https://doi.org/10.59889/ijembis.v3i3.180
- Pratisthita, D. A. A. P., Yudhistira, P. G. A., & Agustina, N. W. (2022). The Effect of Brand Positioning, Brand Image, and Perceived Price on Consumer Repurchase Intention Low-Cost Carrier. *Journal of Theory and Applied Management*, 15(2), 182-195. https://doi.org/10.20473/jmtt.v15i2.35715
- Punyatoya, P. (2019). Effects of cognitive and affective trust on online customer Behavior. *Marketing Intelligence and Planning*, 37(1), 80-96.
- Rahi, S., & Ghani, M. (2018). Integration of DeLone and McLean and self-determination theory in internet banking continuance intention context. International Journal of Accounting & Information Management, 27(3), 512-528.
- Reinhardt, N., Reinhard, M., & Bittner-Fäthke, G. (2023). The correlation between honestyhumility and attitude toward counterfeit luxury. *Italian Journal of Marketing*, 2023(4), 503-519. https://doi.org/10.1007/s43039-023-00082-3
- Santi, I. G. A. P. C., & Suasana, I. G. A. K. G. (2021). The Role of Brand Image Mediates the Effect of Electronic Word of Mouth on Repurchase Intention in Starbucks Coffee. *International Journal of Management and Commerce Innovations*, 9(1), 328-338.
- Şehirli, M. (2023). A Research on the Factors Affecting User Trust in an E-Commerce Site: The Relationship Between the Trust in The Website and the Repurchase and Recommending Behavior. *Pamukkale University Journal of Social Sciences Institute, 58*, 305-326. https://research-ebsco-com.ejournal.mahidol.ac.th/c/ 44udbc/viewer/pdf/b2zr46bwf5
- Shamayleh, G., & Arsel, Z. (2020). Orchestrating pet influencers: Rhetorical and visual strategies in creating mediated platform content. Association for Consumer Research (ACR) North American Advances, 48, 874-879.

- Shim, M., & Jo, H. S. (2020). What quality factors matter in enhancing the perceived benefits of online health information sites? Application of the updated DeLone and McLean Information Systems Success Model. *Journal of Medical Informatics*, 137, 104093. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ijmedinf.2020.104093.
- Shimp, T. (2014). Komunikasi Pemasaran Terpadu dalam Periklanan dan Promosi. Jakarta: Salemba Empat
- Simbolon, F. P., & Law, V. (2022). Social Media Marketing through Instagram and Repurchase Intention: The Mediating Role of Customer Engagement. *Binus Business Review : Management, Accounting and Hospitality Management,* 13(3), 223–232. https://doi.org/10.21512/bbr.v13i3.8576
- Singh, R., & Banerjee, N. (2021). The mediating role of brand credibility on celebrity credibility in building brand equity and immutable customer relationship. *IIMB Management Review*, 33(2), 119-132. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.iimb.2021.03.010
- Srisusilawati, P., Wijayanti, I. M., Yaqin, H. N., & Eprianti, N. (2023). Marketing strategy in building brand image and strengthening the foundation of Sharia Bank. *International Journal of Professional Business Review*, 8(5), 1-19. https://doi.org/ 10.26668/businessreview/2023.v8i5.2038
- Starngage. (2019). *Influencer Marketing in Australia*. Retrieved from https://starngage. com/influencer-marketing-australia/
- Statista. (2022). *Thailand: number of social network users 2017-2026*. Retrieved from https://www.statista.com/statistics/489230/number-of-social-network-users-in-thailand/
- Subawa, N. S. (2020). The effect of experiential marketing, social media marketing, and brand trust on repurchase intention in Ovo applications. *International Research Journal of Management, IT and Social Sciences*, 7(3), 11–21. https://doi.org/10.21744/irjmis.v7n3.881

- Sun, J., Leung, X. Y., & Bai, B. (2021). How social media influencer's event endorsement changes attitudes of followers: the moderating effect of followers' gender. *International Journal of Contemporary Hospitality Management, 33*(7), 2337-2351.
- Tandon, A., Aakash, A., & Aggarwal, A. G. (2020). Impact of EWOM, website quality, and product satisfaction on customer satisfaction and repurchase intention: moderating role of shipping and handling. *International Journal of Systems Assurance Engineering and Management*, 11(S2), 349–356. https://doi.org/ 10.1007/s13198-020-00954-3
- Tariq, M. I., Nawaz, M.R., Nawaz, M.M., & Butt, H.A. (2013). Customer perceptions about branding and purchase intention: A study of FMCG in an emerging market. *Journal of Basic and Applied Scientific Research*, 3(2), 340–347.
- Thairath Online. (2023). "P'Jack" vs. "Jum Meng" When they met for the first time, they were confused as to why "Jum" could talk. Retrieved from https://www.thairath. co.th/video/news/topnews/hotclip/757736
- Today Bizview. (2023). *More than 49% of Thai people raise animals instead of their children. Willing to pay an average of 1-20,000 baht per year to take care of the godchild.* Retrieved from https://workpointtoday.com/thai-people-pet-parent/
- Trivedi, S.K., & Yadav, M.(2019). Repurchase intentions in Y generation: mediation of trust and e-satisfaction. *Marketing Intelligence & Planning*, 38(4), 401–415. https://doi.org/10.1108/mip-02-2019-0072
- Ünal, S., Deniz, E., & Akin, N. (2019). Determining the Factors That Influence the Intention to Purchase Luxury Fashion Brands of Young Consumers. *Ege Academic Review*, 19(2), 221-236. https://doi.org/10.21121/eab.511806
- Wagiswari, K. A. (2022). Analysis of the Impact of Brand Image on Smartphone Product Purchase Decisions in Bandun. Specialusis Ugdymas / Special Education, 1(43), 2118-2141. https://www.sumc.lt/index.php/se/issue/view/10

- Wandoko, W., & Panggati, I. E. (2022). The Influence of Digital Influencer, e-WOM and Information Quality on Customer Repurchase Intention toward Online Shop in e-Marketplace during PandemicCOVID-19: The Mediation Effect of Customer Trust. *Journal of Relationship Marketing*, 21(2), 148-167. https://doi.org/10.1080/15332667.2022.2035198
- Wang, C., Ng, W. K., & Chen, H. (2012). "From data to knowledge to action: A taxi business intelligence system." In 15th International Conference on Information Fusion (pp. 1623–1628). Singapore: IEEE.
- Wei, W., Miao, L. & Huang, Z. J. (2013). Customer Engagement Behaviors and Hotel Responses. International Journal of Hospitality Management 33, 316–30.
- Widyasari, K. A., & Suparna, G. (2022). The Role of Brand Image in Mediating the Effect of Celebrity Endorsers on Repurchase Intention. *European Journal* of Business and Management Research, 7(3), 179-183.
- Wijaya, H. R., & Astuti, S. T. (2018). The Effect of trust and brand image to repurchase intention in online shopping. *KnE Social Sciences*, *3*, 915-928.
- Wijaya, K. S. (2023). The influence of brand image and trust on purchase decisions in TikTok Shop. *Journal Research of Social Science, Economics, and Management,* 3(1), 1-13. https://doi.org/10.59141/jrssem.v3i01.516
- Williams, P., & G. N. Soutar. (2009). Value, Satisfaction and Behavioral Intentions in an Adventure Tourism Context. Annals of Tourism Research, 36(3), 413–38.
- Winarto, M. R. A., & Widyastuti, W. (2021). Pengaruh Brand Image dan Brand Love Terhadap Repurchase Intention (Studi Kasus pada Konsumen Produk Gucci di Surabaya). Nomicpedia: Journal of Economics and Business Innovation, 1(2), 102-110. https://journal.inspirasi.or.id/nomicpedia/article/view/65
- Wissman, B. (2018). Micro-Influencers: The Marketing Force of the Future. Retrieved from https://www.forbes.com/sites/barrettwissman/2018/03/02/microinfluencers-the-marketing-force-of-the-future/

- Wu, J., Wu, T., & Schlegelmilch, B. B. (2020). Seize the day : How online retailers should respond to positive reviews. *Journal of interactive marketing, Elsevier Inc*, 52, 52–60. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.intmar.2020.04.008
- Wu, P.C.S., Yeh, G.Y.Y., & Hsiao, C.R. (2011). The effect of store image and service quality on brand image and purchase intention for private label brands. *Australasian Marketing Journal*, 19, 30–39.
- Yan, Z. (2017). Mobile phone behavior. Cambridge: Cambridge University Press.
- Yasa, I. K. (2018). The Role of Brand Image mediating the effect of Product Quality on Repurchase Intention. *Russian Journal of Agricultural and Socio-Economic Sciences*, 83(11),172–180. https://doi.org/10.18551/rjoas.2018-11.20
- Zamudio, C. (2016). Matching with the stars: How brand personality determines celebrity endorsement contract formation. *International Journal of Research in Marketing*, 33, 409–427.
- Zarkasi, Z., Ardianto, R., Sampe, F., & Cahyaningrum, A. O. (2023). Influence of Brand Image, Product Design, and Celebrity Endorsement. *Al-Kharaj: Journal of Islamic Economic and Business*, 5(1), 19-31.
- Zhang, H., Liang, X., & Qi, C. (2021). Investigating the impact of interpersonal closeness and social status on electronic word-of-mouth effectiveness. *Journal of Business Research*, 130, 453-461. doi:10.1016/j.jbusres.2020.01.020.
- Zhang, L., & Wei, W. (2021). Influencer Marketing: A Comparison of Traditional Celebrity, Social Media Influencer, and AI Influencer. Boston Hospitality Review. Retrieved from https://www.bu.edu/bhr/files/2022/04/BHR_Zhang-Wei_Influencer-Marketing_OCT.21.pdf
- Zhang, L., Kuo, P. J., & McCall, M. (2019). Microcelebrity: the impact of information source, hotel type, and misleading photos on consumers' responses. *Cornell Hospitality Quarterly*, 60(4), 285-297.

- Zhang, T. C., Gu, H., & Jahromi, M. F. (2019). What makes the sharing economy successful? An empirical examination of competitive customer value propositions. *Computers in Human Behavior*, 95, 275-283. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.chb. 2018.03.019
- Zhang, T., & Huang, X. (2022). Viral marketing: Influencer marketing pivots in tourism–a case study of meme influencer instigated travel interest surge. *Current Issues in Tourism*, 25(4), 508-515.



APPENDICES

Appendix A: Questionnaire Survey (English Version)

Part 1: Screening Questions

1.1 I am 18 years old or older.

 \Box Yes (Continue the questionnaire) \Box No (End of the questionnaire)

- 1.2 I live in Bangkok and Metropolitan Region (Nakhon Pathom, Nonthaburi, Pathum Thani, Samut Prakan, and Samut Sakhon)
 □ Yes (Continue the questionnaire) □ No (End of the questionnaire)
- I watched cat or dog video clips presenting Home Electronic Appliance products on social media platforms in the past 6 months.

 \Box Yes (Continue the questionnaire) \Box No (End of the questionnaire)

- 1.4 I noticed these electronic home appliances being advertised by pet influencers.
 - 1.4.1 Light bulb
 - 1.4.2 Hair dryer, iron, Rice Cooker, Electric Pot, Microwave, Air Fryer, Coffee maker
 - 1.4.3 Vacuums machine, Washing Machine, Fan, Air Filter, Water filter
 - 1.4.4 Refrigerator
 - 1.4.5 TV, Speaker, Home Theater set

 \Box Yes (Continue the questionnaire) \Box No (End of the questionnaire)

1.5 I watch videos of pet influencers through one of these social media platforms, including TikTok, Instagram, YouTube, Facebook, and X (Twitter).
□ Yes (Continue the questionnaire) □ No (End of the questionnaire)

Part 2 Factors influencing repurchase intention for home electronic appliance products when using pet influencer marketing.

Part 2.1 Content Quality

Content Quality	Strongly Disagree	Disagree	Indifference	Agree	Strongly Agree
	(1)	(2)	(3)	(4)	(5)
Quality of information					
1. I think that pet influencers' video					
provide various information of the					
electronic home appliance product.	21.21				
2. In my opinion, pet influencers	30	N.			
offer trustworthy insights on					
electronic household appliances.					
3. I think pet influencers create					
useful content.					
4. Pet influencer provide					
information that meet my viewing					
purpose.					
Perceived informativeness					
5. The information provided by pet			//		
influencers on electronic home			S.//		
appliances is easily understandable.					
6. I think pet influencers make					
home appliances content easier to					
explain.					
Audience Satisfaction					
7. I think pet influencers provide					
content that worth my time to watch.					
8. I am generally satisfied with the					
contents presented by pet influences.					
Entertainment					
9. I don't get bored watching pet					
influencers promote electronic					
home appliances products.					

	Strongly	Disagree	Indifference	Agree	Strongly
Content Quality	Disagree				Agree
	(1)	(2)	(3)	(4)	(5)
10. I like to watch pet influencers					
introduce home electronic					
appliance products.					
Access intention					
11. I like to visit pet influencers'					
profiles to watch their new video.					
12. I am willing to watch content					
featuring electronic home appliances	90	11			
presented by pet influencers again.					
Sufficiency content					
13. I think pet influencers provide					
various content about electronic					
home appliance products.					
14. In my opinion, pet influencers					
provide enough content about					
electronic home appliance products.					

Part 2.2 Attitude toward pet influencer Questions

Attitude toward pet influencer Questions	Strongly Disagree (1)	Disagree (2)	Indifference (3)	Agree (4)	Strongly Agree (5)
1. I think that pet influencers are					
adorable.					
2. I think that pet influencers are					
good entertainers.					
3. I associate the pet influencer with					
the quality of the electronic home					
appliance products.					
4. I think pet influencers are funny.					
5. I feel calm when watching videos					
from pet influencers.					

Attitude toward pet influencer Questions	Strongly Disagree (1)	0	Indifference (3)	Agree (4)	Strongly Agree (5)
6. I feel relaxed when watching					
videos from pet influencers.					
7. I think that pet influencers are					
innocent.					

Part 2.3 Pet Celebrity Endorsement

Pet Celebrity Endorsement	Strongly Disagree (1)	Disagree (2)	Indifference (3)	Agree (4)	Strongly Agree (5)
1. I recognize electronic home appliance brands that use pet celebrity endorsers.					
2. I think that pet influencers promote electronic home appliances as being reliable.					
3. I think that pet influencers' image aligns with the electronic home appliance products.					
4. In my opinion, pet influencers have become increasingly influential in promoting electronic home appliances.)		
5. I don't see any harm in pets promoting products or services, as long as they are treated well.					

Part 2.4 Brand image

	Strongly	Disagree	Indifference	Agree	Strongly
Brand image	Disagree				Agree
	(1)	(2)	(3)	(4)	(5)
1. The electronic home appliance brand					
that pet influencers advertise is nice.					
2. The electronic home appliance					
brand that pet influencers advertise is					
a brand that does not disappoint its					
customers.	21.11				
3. The electronic home appliance	40	~			
brand that pet influencers advertise is					
one of the best brands in the sector.					
4. The electronic home appliance					
products that pet influencers endorse					
have characteristics that other brands					
do not.					
5. The electronic home appliance					
brand that pet influencers endorse has					
a personality that distinguishes itself			/ e//		
from competitor brands.			5//		
6. The electronic home appliance		1.5			
brand I used is one of the best brands	л ži s				
in the sector.	1.55				

Electronic Word of Mouth	Strongly	Disagree	Indifference	Agree	Strongly
(E-WOM)	Disagree				Agree
	(1)	(2)	(3)	(4)	(5)
1. I like to share the video of pet					
influencers that I like on my personal					
social media account.					
2. I like to share positive comment on					
the cute video of pet influencer.					
3. I like to talk about funny videos of	22.1				
pet influencers with my friends on	90	4			
my social media.					
4. My friend send me a video of pet					
influencers.					
5. I saw my circle share the video of					
pet influencers on their social media					
platform <mark>s.</mark>					

Part 2.5 Electronic Word of Mouth (E-WOM)

Part 2.6 Trust

Trust	Strongly Disagree (1)	Disagree (2)	Indifference (3)	Agree (4)	Strongly Agree (5)
1. If I trust a pet influencer, I want to repurchase the same brand of electronic home appliance presented by them again.					
2. I think that pet influencers have morals.					
3. I think that pet influencers have a high reputation.					
4. I trust pet influencers.5. I think pet influencers care about					
their audiences.6. I think pet influencers provide good advice.					

Part 2.7 Repurchase Intention

	Strongly	Disagree	Indifference	Agree	Strongly
Repurchase Intention	Disagree				Agree
	(1)	(2)	(3)	(4)	(5)
1. I plan to buy the electronic home					
appliances that I saw in the pet					
influencers' video in the next purchase.					
2. I am willing to repurchase electronic					
home appliances that are recommended					
by pet influencers.	23.14				
3. I am considering repurchasing	90	~			
electronic home appliances after					
watching pet influencers' videos					
presenting the product.					
4. I will buy the electronic home					
appliance that was recommended by					
the pet in <mark>fluence</mark> r again.					
5. I am likely to repurchase electronic	F				
home appliance products promoten					
by pet influencers.			/e/		
6. I will definitely repurchase electronic			S.//		
home appliance products presented					
by pet influencers.	TÃ				

Part 3 -Behavior on social media platforms on watching pet influencers' clips

- 3.1 I frequently engage with social media (Facebook, Instagram, TikTok, and X (Twitter)) around......
 - \Box All the time (More than 10 hours/day)
 - □ Usually (8-10 hours/day)
 - \Box Often (5-7 hours/day)
 - \Box Sometimes (3-5 hours/day)
 - □ Rarely (Less than 1-3 hours/day)

- 3.2 These groups or individuals have the most influence on me to watch videos of pet influencers' social media platforms (Facebook, Instagram, TikTok, and X (Twitter)). (You can choose more than one.) □ Myself \Box My family \Box My relatives \Box My friends or acquaintances \Box Celebrity and influencers \Box My pet 3.3 These groups or individuals have the most influence on me to have active behavior (share and comment) on the videos of pet influencers on my social media account (Facebook, Instagram, TikTok, and X (Twitter)). (You can choose more than one.) □ Myself \Box My family \Box My relatives \Box My friends or acquaintances □ Celebrity and influencers □ My pet 3.4 I like to watch videos of pet influencers when..... (What is the reason behind people's interest in watching videos of pet influencers?) (You can choose more than one.) □ When I feel stress □ When I'm in a good mood □ When I'm bored □ When I feel bad □ When I surf the internet □ When I feel lonely □ When I'm sad □ When I'm angry □ When I'm happy □ When I'm in a bad mood Part 4 - Respondents' Background 4.1 Age range (years old) $\Box 18 - 24$ $\Box 25 - 34$ □ 35 - 44 $\Box 45 - 54$ $\Box 55 - 60$ \Box Above 60 4.2 Gender □ Female □others □ Male
- 4.3 Your highest level of education
 □ Middle School or equivalent
 □ Bachelor's degree or equivalent
 □ Master's degree or higher

4.4 Employment Status

	□ Full-time student	\Box Private sector officer
	□ Government officer	□ A freelancer
	□ State enterprise employees	□ Unemployed
	□ Businessman	□ Others
4.5	Average monthly income.	
	□ Less than 10,000 THB	□ 10,000 THB - 30,000 THB
	□ 30,001 THB - 50,000 THB	□ 50,001 THB - 70,000 THB
	□ Over 70,000 THB	



Appendix B: Questionnaire Survey (Thai Version)

ส่วนที่ 1: คำถามคัดกรอง

- 1.1 ฉันมีอายุ 18 ปี หรือ มากกว่า
 - 🗌 ใช่ (ทำแบบสอบถามต่อไป) 🛛 🗖 ไม่ใช่ (สิ้นสุดแบบสอบถาม)
- 1.2 ฉันอาศัยอยู่ในกรุงเทพและปริมณฑล (นนทบุรี, นครปฐม, ปทุมธานี, สมุทรปราการ, และ สมุทรสาคร)
 ใช่ (ทำแบบสอบถามต่อไป)
 ไม่ใช่ (สิ้นสุดแบบสอบถาม)
- 1.3 ฉันเคยดูคลิปวิดีโอที่สัตว์เลี้ยงที่มีอิทธิพลบนสื่อสังคมออนไลน์ (pet influencer) นำเสนอ เครื่องใช้ไฟฟ้าภายในบ้าน ภายในบ้านภายในช่วง 6 เดือนที่ผ่านมา
 □ เคย (ทำแบบสอบถามต่อไป)
 □ ไม่เคย (สิ้นสุดแบบสอบถาม)
- 1.4 ฉันเคยเห็นสัตว์เลี้ยงที่มีอิทธิพลบนสื่อสังคมออนไลน์ (pet influencer) นำเสนอเครื่องใช้ไฟฟ้า ภายในบ้านเหล่านี้
 - 1.4.1) หลอดไฟ
 - 1.4.2) เครื่องเป่าผม, เตารีด, หม้อหุงข้าว, หม้อไฟฟ้า, เตาอบไม โกรเวฟ, หม้อทอดไร้น้ำมัน, เครื่องทำกาแฟ
 - 1.4.3) เครื่องดู<mark>ด</mark>ฝุ่น, เครื่องซักผ้า, พัด<mark>ลม,</mark> เครื่องกรองอากาศ, เครื่องกรองน้ำ
 - 1.4.4) ตู้เย็น
 - 1.4.5) ทรทัศน์, ลำโพง, ชุดโฮมเซียเตอร์

🗌 เคย (ทำแบบสอบถามต่อไป) 🛛 ไม่เคย (สิ้นสุดแบบสอบถาม)

- 1.5 ฉันดูกลิปวิดี โอของสัตว์เลี้ยงที่มีอิทธิพลบนสื่อสังคมออน ไลน์บนสื่อสังคมออน ไลน์ (โซเซียล มีเดีย) เหล่านี้ ติ๊กตอก, อินสตาแกรม, ยูทูป, เฟสบุ๊ค, หรือ เอ็กซ์ (ทวิตเตอร์)
 - 🗌 ใช่ (ทำแบบสอบถามต่อไป) 👘 🔲 ไม่ใช่ (สิ้นสุดแบบสอบถาม)

ส่วนที่ 2 ปัจจัยที่ส่งผลต่อการซื้อเครื่องใช้ไฟฟ้าภายในบ้านซ้ำจากการใช้การตลาดโดยใช้สัตว์เลี้ยง ที่มีอิทธิพลบนสื่อสังคมออนไลน์มาช่วยในการโฆษณา

คุณภาพของเนื้อหา	ไม่เห็นด้วย อย่างยิ่ง	ไม่ เห็นด้วย	เฉย ๆ	เห็น ด้วย	เห็นด้วย อย่างยิ่ง
	(1)	(2)	(3)	(4)	(5)
คุณภาพของข้อมูล					
1. ฉันคิดว่าวิดีโอของสัตว์เลี้ยงที่มีอิทธิพลบนสื่อสังคม					
ออนไลน์ให้ข้อมูลที่หลากหลายเกี่ยวกับเครื่องใช้ไฟฟ้า	1				
ภายในบ้าน					
 ฉันกิดว่าสัตว์เลี้ยงที่มีอิทธิพลบนสื่อสังกมออนไลน์ให้ 					
ข้อมูลที่เชื่อถือ <mark>ไ</mark> ด้เกี่ยวกับเกรื่องใช้ไฟฟ้าภายในบ้ <mark>าน</mark>					
3. ฉันกิดว่า <mark>ส</mark> ัตว์เลี้ยงที่ม <mark>ีอิทธิ</mark> พลบนสื่อสังกมออ <mark>นไลน์</mark>					
สร้างเนื้อห <mark>า</mark> ที่เป็นประโ <mark>ยช</mark> น์					
 สัตว์เลี้ยงที่มีอิทธิพลบนสื่อสังคมออนไลน์ให้ข้อมูล 			6		
ที่ตรงตาม <mark>ความต้องการข</mark> องฉัน					
การรับรู้ข้อมูล					
5. สัตว์เลี้ยงที่มีอิทธิพลบนสื่อสังคมออนไลน์ให้ข้อมูลที่		// />	. //		
เข้าใจง่าย เกี่ยวกับเครื่องใช้ไฟฟ้าภายในบ้าน					
6. ฉันคิดว่าสัตว์เลี้ยงที่มีอิทธิพลบนสื่อสังคมออนไลน์ทำให้			· · · ·		
เนื้อหาเกี่ยวกับเครื่องใช้ไฟฟ้าภายในบ้านง่ายต่อการอธิบาย	1.22				
ความพึงพอใจของคนดู	0				
7. ฉันกิคว่าการดูเนื้อหาบนวิดี โอของสัตว์เลี้ยงที่มี					
อิทธิพลบนสื่อสังคมออนไลน์นั้นคุ้มค่ากับเวลาของฉัน					
8. โดยรวมแล้วฉันพอใจกับเนื้อหาที่นำเสนอโดยสัตว์					
เลี้ยงที่มีอิทธิพลบนสื่อสังคมออนไลน์					
ความบันเทิง					
9. ฉันไม่รู้สึกเบื่อเวลาดูสัตว์เลี้ยงที่มีอิทธิพลบนสื่อสังคม					
ออนไลน์นำเสนอเครื่องใช้ไฟฟ้าภายในบ้าน					
10. ฉันรู้สึกเพลิคเพลินไปกับการนำเสนอเครื่องใช้					
ไฟฟ้าภายในบ้านของสัตว์เลี้ยงที่มีอิทธิพลบนสื่อสังคม					
ออนไลน์					

ส่วนที่ 2.1 คุณภาพของเนื้อหา

คุณภาพของเนื้อหา	ไม่เห็นด้วย อย่างยิ่ง	ไม่ เห็นด้วย	ເຊຍ ໆ	เห็น ด้วย	เห็นด้วย อย่างยิ่ง
	(1)	(2)	(3)	(4)	(5)
ความตั้งใจในการเข้าถึง					
11. ฉันชอบเยี่ยมชมดูที่หน้าโปรไฟล์ของสัตว์เลี้ยวที่มี					
อิทธิพลบนสื่อสังคมออนไลน์เพื่อชมวิดีโอใหม่ของพวกเขา					
12. ฉันยินดีที่จะดูเนื้อหาเกี่ยวกับเครื่องใช้ไฟฟ้าภายใน					
บ้านที่นำเสนอ โดยสัตว์เลี้ยงที่มีอิทธิพลบนสื่อสังคม					
ออนไลน์อีกกรั้ง					
ความเพียงพอของเนื้อหา					
13. ฉันกิดว่าสัตว์เลี้ยงที่มีอิทธิพลบนสื่อสังกมออนไลน์					
นำเสนอเนื้อหาต่าง ๆ เกี่ยวกับเครื่องใช้ไฟฟ้าภายในบ้าน					
ได้อย่างหลากห <mark>ลาย</mark>		Z.,			
14. ฉันกิดว่า <mark>สัต</mark> ว์เลี้ยงที่มีอิ <mark>ทธิ</mark> พลบนสื่อสังกมออนไลน์					
ให้เนื้อหาเกี่ยวกับเครื่อง <mark>ใช้</mark> ไฟฟ้าภายในบ้านได้ <mark>อย่าง</mark>					
เพียงพอ					

ส่วนที่ 2.2 ทัศนคติที่มีต่อสัตว์เลี้ยงที่มีอิทธิพลบนสื่อสังคมออนไลน์

ทัศนคติที่มีต่อสัตว์เลี้ยงที่มีอิทธิพลบนสื่อสังคมอ <mark>อนไลน์</mark>	ไม่เห็นด้วย อย่างยิ่ง	ไม่ เห็นด้วย	เฉย ๆ	เห็น ด้วย	เห็นด้วย อย่างยิ่ง
. ^y , <u>,</u> ,	(1)	(2)	(3)	(4)	(5)
1. ฉันกิดว่าสัตว์เลี้ยงที่มีอิทธิพลบนสื่อสังคมออนไลน์น่ารัก					
 ฉันกิดว่าสัตว์เลี้ยงที่มีอิทธิพลบนสื่อสังกมออนไลน์ 					
เป็นผู้ให้กวามบันเทิงที่ดี					
3 ฉันคิคว่าสัตว์เลี้ยงที่มีอิทธิพลบนสื่อสังคมออนไลน์					
มีความเชื่อมโยงกับเครื่องใช้ไฟฟ้าภายในบ้าน					
4. ฉันกิคว่าสัตว์เลี้ยงที่มีอิทธิพลบนสื่อสังกมออนไลน์นั้น					
น่างบงัน					
5. ฉันรู้สึกสบายใจเมื่อดูวิดีโอจากสัตว์เลี้ยงที่มีอิทธิพล					
บนสื่อสังกมออนไลน์					
6 ฉันรู้สึกผ่อนคลายเมื่อดูวิดี โอจากเลี้ยงที่มีอิทธิพล					
บนสื่อสังกมออนไลน์					
7. ฉันกิคว่าสัตว์เลี้ยงที่มีอิทธิพลบนสื่อสังกมออนไลน์นั้น					
น่าเอ็นดู					

แรงส่งเสริมของสัตว์เลี้ยงที่มีอิทธิพล	ไม่เห็นด้วย อย่างยิ่ง	ไม่ เห็นด้วย	ເຊຍ ໆ	เห็น ด้วย	เห็นด้วย อย่างยิ่ง
บนสื่อสังคมออนไลน์	(1)	(2)	(3)	(4)	(5)
 ฉันจดจำตราสินค้าของเครื่องใช้ไฟฟ้าที่มีสัตว์เลี้ยงที่มี 					
อิทธิพลบนสื่อสังกมออนไลน์ส่งเสริมได้					
2. ฉันกิดว่าการที่สัตว์เลี้ยงที่มีอิทธิพลบนสื่อสังกมออนไลน์					
มานำเสนอเกรื่องใช้ไฟฟ้าภายในบ้านนั้นมีความน่าเชื่อถือ					
 3 ฉันกิดว่าภาพลักษณ์ของสัตว์เลี้ยงที่มีอิทธิพลบนสื่อ 					
สังคมออนไลน์กับเครื่องใช้ไฟฟ้าภายในบ้านไปด้วยกันได้					
 4 ฉันกิดว่าสัตว์เลี้ยงที่มีอิทธิพลบนสื่อสังกมออนไลน์มี 	1				
อิทธิพลมากขึ้นในการนำเสนอเกรื่องใช้ไฟฟ้าภายในบ้าน					
 จันไม่เห็นว่าการที่นำสัตว์เลี้ยงมานำเสนอสินค้าหรือบริการ 					
เป็นอันตรายต่ <mark>อ</mark> พวกเขาตราบใดที่พวกเขาได้รับการปฏิ <mark>บัติที่ดี</mark>					

ส่วนที่ 2.3 แรงส่งเสริมของสัตว์เลี้ยงที่มีอิทธิพลบนสื่อสังคมออนไลน์

ส่วนที่ 2.4 <mark>ภ</mark>าพลักษณ์<mark>ต่</mark>อตราสินค้า

ภาพลักษณ์ต่อตราสินค้า	ไม่เห็นด้วย อย่างยิ่ง (1)	ไ <mark>ม่</mark> เห็นด้วย <mark>(2)</mark>	เฉย ๆ (3)	เห็น ด้วย (4)	เห็นด้วย อย่างยิ่ง (5)
 ตราสินล้าเครื่องใช้ไฟฟ้าภายในบ้านที่ สัตว์เลี้ยงที่มี 		/ (2)	.//		
อิทธิพลบนสื่อ <mark>สังคมออนไ</mark> ลน์โ <mark>ฆษณานั้นน่าใช้</mark>		$\langle \mathbf{n} \rangle$			
2. ตราสินค้าเครื่องใช้ไฟฟ้าภายในบ้านที่ สัตว์เลี้ยงที่มี					
อิทธิพลบนสื่อสังคมออนไลน์โฆษณาเป็นตราสินค้า	1.14				
ที่ไม่ทำให้ลูกก้าผิดหวัง	9 <u> </u>				
3. ตราสินค้าเครื่องใช้ไฟฟ้าภายในบ้าน ที่สัตว์เลี้ยงที่มี					
อิทธิพลบนสื่อสังคมออนไลน์นำเสนอเป็นหนึ่งในตราสินค้า					
ที่ดีที่สุดสำหรับกลุ่มสินก้าเครื่องใช้ไฟฟ้าภายในบ้าน					
4. เครื่องใช้ไฟฟ้าภายในบ้านที่สัตว์เลี้ยงที่มีอิทธิพลบน					
สื่อสังคมออนไลน์ส่งเสริมมีลักษณะเฉพาะที่ตราสินค้า					
อื่นไม่มี					
5. ตราสินก้าเครื่องใช้ไฟฟ้าภายในบ้านที่สัตว์เลี้ยงที่มี					
อิทธิพลบนสื่อสังคมออนไลน์ส่งเสริมมีคุณสมบัติ					
แตกต่างจากตราสินค้าอื่น					
 6. ตราสินล้าเครื่องใช้ไฟฟ้าภายในบ้านที่ฉันใช้เป็นหนึ่ง 					
ในตราสินค้าที่ดีที่สุด					

การสื่อสารปากต่อปากทางเครื่องมือ สื่อสารอิเล็กทรอนิกส์	ไม่เห็นด้วย อย่างยิ่ง	ไม่ เห็นด้วย	ເລຍ ໆ	เห็น ด้วย	เห็นด้วย อย่างยิ่ง
	(1)	(2)	(3)	(4)	(5)
1. ฉันชอบแบ่งปันวิดีโอของสัตว์เลี้ยงที่มีอิทธิพลบนสื่อ					
สังคมออน ไลน์ที่ฉันชอบลงบนสื่อสังคมออน ไลน์ส่วนตัว					
ของฉัน					
2. ฉันชอบแสดงกวามกิดเห็นด้านบวกบนวิดีโอของสัตว์					
เลี้ยงที่มีอิทธิพลบนสื่อสังคมออนไลน์					
3. ฉันชอบพูคถึงวิดีโอตลกๆของสัตว์เลี้ยงที่มีอิทธิพล					
บนสื่อสังกมออนไลน์กับเพื่อนๆบนสื่อสังกมออนไลน์	1				
 ฉันได้รับวิดีโอของสัตว์เลี้ยงที่มีอิทธิพลบนสื่อสังคม 					
ออนไลน์จากเพื่ <mark>อ</mark> นๆ					
5. ฉันเห็นคน <mark>ร</mark> อบตัวฉันแบ่งปันวิดีโอของสัตว์เลี้ <mark>ยงที่</mark> มี					
อิทธิพลบน <mark>สื่อ</mark> สังกมออ <mark>นไ</mark> ลน์ลงบนบัญชีสื่อสัง <mark>กม</mark>					
ออนไลน์ข <mark>องพวกเขา</mark>					

1 1					
ส่วนที่ 2.5 การสื่อสาร		~ ~	~ ~	0 7	
down a F and do and	a la e rica la e ma a	10 a a	1020	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	~പ് ~്
רו ממחרות בי עועניו מ	4	16170.41	I PI CI PI	ועוזאוופרו ה	TUTUA

ส่วนที่ 2.6 ความเชื่อมั่น

ความเชื่อมั่น	ไม่เห็นด้วย อย่างยิ่ง	ไม่ เห็นด้วย	เฉย ๆ	เห็น ด้วย	เห็นด้วย อย่างยิ่ง
	(1)	(2)	(3)	(4)	(5)
1. ถ้าฉันเชื่อถือสัตว์เลี้ยงที่มีอิทธิพลบนสื่อสังคมออนไลน์	- A A				
ฉันก็อยากจะซื้อเครื่องใช้ไฟฟ้าภายในบ้านที่พวกเขา					
นำเสนออีกครั้ง					
2. ฉันกิดว่าสัตว์เลี้ยงที่มีอิทธิพลบนสื่อสังกมออนไลน์					
มีคุณธรรม					
 ฉันคิดว่าสัตว์เลี้ยงที่มีอิทธิพลบนสื่อสังคมออนไลน์นั้น 					
มีชื่อเสียงมาก					
4. ฉันเชื่อสัตว์เลี้ยงที่มีอิทธิพลบนสื่อสังกมออนไลน์					
5. ฉันกิดว่าสัตว์เลี้ยงที่มีอิทธิพลบนสื่อสังกมออนไลน์นั้น					
เอาใจใส่คนดู					
6. ฉันคิดว่าสัตว์เลี้ยงที่มีอิทธิพลบนสื่อสังคมออนไลน์นั้น					
ให้กำแนะนำที่ดี					

ส่วนที่ 2.7 ความตั้งใจในการซื้อซ้ำ

	ไม่เห็นด้วย	ไม่	ເລຍ ໆ	เห็น	เห็นด้วย
ความตั้งใจในการซื้อซ้ำ	อย่างยิ่ง	เห็นด้วย		ด้วย	อย่างยิ่ง
	(1)	(2)	(3)	(4)	(5)
1. ฉันมีแผนจะซื้อเครื่องใช้ไฟฟ้าภายในบ้านที่ฉันเห็น					
ในวิดี โอของสัตว์เลี้ยงที่มีอิทธิพลบนสื่อสังคมออน ไลน์					
ในการซื้อครั้งถัดไป					
 ฉันยินดีที่จะซื้อเกรื่องใช้ไฟฟ้าภายในบ้านที่สัตว์เลี้ยง 					
ที่มีอิทธิพลบนสื่อสังคมออนไลน์แนะนำซ้ำ					
 หลังจากได้ดูวิดีโอของสัตว์เลี้ยงที่มีอิทธิพลบนสื่อสังกม 					
ออนไลน์ ฉันพิจารณาที่จะซื้อเครื่องใช้ไฟฟ้าภายในบ้าน	1				
ที่มีตราสินค้าเดิมซ้ <mark>ำอีกครั้ง</mark>					
4. ฉันจะซื้อเครื่ <mark>อ</mark> งใช้ไฟฟ้าภายในบ้านที่มีการแนะนำ					
โดยสัตว์เลี้ย <mark>งที่ม</mark> ีอิทธิพล <mark>บน</mark> สื่อสังกมออนไลน์					
5. ฉันมีแน <mark>ว</mark> โน้มที่จะซื้ <mark>อเค</mark> รื่องใช้ไฟฟ้าภายในบ้านที่					
นำเสนอโค <mark>ย</mark> สัตว์เลี้ยงที่ <mark>มีอ</mark> ิทธิพลบนสื่อสังคมออนไลน์ซ้ำ					
 6. ฉันจะซื้อเครื่องใช้ไฟฟ้าภายในบ้านที่นำเสนอโดยสัตว์ 			$\left \right\rangle$		
เลี้ยงที่มีอิท <mark>ธิ</mark> พลบนสื่อ <mark>สัง</mark> คมออนไลน์อย่างแน่น <mark>อน</mark>					

้ส่วนที่ 3 พฤติกรรมบนสื่อสังคมออนไลน์จากการดูวิดีโอของสัตว์เลี้ยงที่มีอิทธิพลบนสื่อสังคมออนไลน์

3.1 โดยเฉลี่ยแล้วฉันใช้สื่อสังคมออนไลน์ (เฟสบุ๊ค, อินสตาแกรม, ติ๊กตอก และ เอ็กซ์ (ทวิตเตอร์))
 ประมาณนี้.....

🗖 ตลอดเวลา (มากกว่า 10 ชั่วโมงต่อวัน)

- 🗌 ใช้เยอะ (8-10 ชั่วโมงต่อวัน)
- 🗌 ใช้บ่อย (5-7 ชั่วโมงต่อวัน)
- 🗌 ใช้บางครั้ง (3-5 ชั่วโมงต่อวัน)
- 🗌 นาน ๆ ใช้ครั้ง (1-3 ชั่วโมงต่อวัน)
- 🔲 แทบจะ ไม่ใช้ (น้อยกว่า 1 ชั่วโมงต่อวัน)

3.2	กลุ่มคนหรือบุคคลเหล่านี้มีอิทธิพลทำให้ฉันดูวิดี โอของสัตว์เลี้ยงที่มีอิทธิผลบนสื่อสังคมออนไลน์
	บนสื่อสังคมออนไลน์ (เฟสบุ๊ค, อินสตาแกรม, ติ๊กตอก และ เอ็กซ์ (ทวิตเตอร์)) (เลือกได้มากกว่า
	1 ป้อ)

	🗌 ตัวเอง	🗌 ครอบครัวของฉัน	🗌 ญาติของฉัน
	🔲 เพื่อนหรือคนรู้จักของฉัน	🔲 ดารา หรือผู้มีอิทธิพลบนสื่อส้	ังคมออนไลน์
	🔲 สัตว์เลี้ยงของฉัน		
3.3	กลุ่มคนหรือบุคคลเหล่านี้มีอิทร์	รีพลทำให้ฉันมีพฤติกรรมเชิงรุก (แร	หร์ และ คอมเม้น) บนวิดี โอของ
	สัตว์เลี้ยงที่มีอิทธิพลบนสื่อสังห	ามออนไลน์ลงบนบัญชีสื่อสังคมออ	นไลน์ (เฟสบุ๊ค, อินสตาแกรม,
	ติ๊กตอก และ เอ็กซ์ (ทวิตเตอร์)) ของฉัน (เลือกได้มากกว่า 1 ข้อ)	
	🗌 ตัวเอง	🗆 ครอบครัวของฉัน	🗖 ญาติของฉัน
	แพื่อนหรือคนรู้จักของฉัน	🗖 คารา <mark>หรื</mark> ออินฟลูเอนเซอร์	
	🗖 สัต <mark>ว์เ</mark> ลี้ยงของฉัน		
3.4	ฉันอยากดูวิดี โอของสัตว์เลี้ยงบ	บนสื่อสั <mark>งคมอ</mark> อนไลน์ตอนที่ (เอ	ลือกได้มากกว่า 1 ข้อ)
	🗆 ต <mark>อนที่ฉันรู้สึก</mark> เครียด	🔲 ตอนที่ฉันอารมณ์ดี	🗖 ตอนที่ฉันรู้สึกเบื่อ
	🗆 ต <mark>อนที่ฉันรู้สึก</mark> แย่	🗖 <mark>ตอนที่ฉันเล่น</mark> อินเตอร์เน็ต	🔲 ตอนที่ฉันรู้สึกเหงา
	🔲 ต <mark>อ</mark> นที่ฉันเศร้า	🗖 ตอนที่ฉันโกรธ	🗌 ตอนที่ฉันมีความสุข
	🗆 ตอน <mark>ที่ฉันอารมณ์ไม่ดี</mark>		
ส่วน	ที่ 4 ข้อมูลทั่วไปของผู้ตอบแบบ	มสอบถาม	
4.1	ช่วงอายุ (ปี)		
	18-24	25 – 34	35 - 44
	\Box 45 – 54	$\Box 55 - 60$	□มากกว่า 60
4.2	เพศ		
	🗌 ชาย	🗆 หญิง	🗖 อื่น ๆ
4.3	ระดับการศึกษาสูงสุด		
	🗌 มัธยมต้นหรือเทียบเท่า	🗌 มัธยมปลายหรือเทียบเท่า	
	🗖 ปริญญาตรีหรือเทียบเท่า	🗖 ปริญญาโทหรือสูงกว่า	

4.4	สถานะการจ้างงาน		
	🗌 นักเรียนเต็มเวลา	🗌 พนักงานเอกชน	🗌 ข้าราชการ
	🗆 อาชีพอิสระ	🗌 พนักงานรัฐวิสาหกิจ	🗆 ว่างงาน
	🗌 ธุรกิจส่วนตัว	🔲 อื่น ๆ	
4.5	รายได้โดยเฉลี่ยต่อเดือน		
	🔲 ต่ำกว่า 10,000 บาท	🗌 10,000 - 30,000 บาท	🔲 30,001 - 50,000 บาท
	☐ 50 001 - 70 000 บาท	🗌 มากกว่า 70 000 บาท	

